
High Peak Borough Council

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Monday, 20 March 2017

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

10 March 2017

PART 1
1. Apolgies for Absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

3. Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure 

4. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

5. Development of the Performance Framework and Targets for 2017/18 (Pages 7 - 
10)

6. Revised Data Protection Policy (Pages 11 - 48)

7. Corporate Equality Objectives (Pages 49 - 58)

8. Consultation and Engagement Policy (Pages 59 - 74)

9. Measuring the Economic Impact of Development (Pages 75 - 96)

10. Amending the scheme of delegation for designation of Neighbourhood Areas in 
specified circumstances (Pages 97 - 102)

11. Heritage Regeneration Grants (Pages 103 - 108)

12. Select Committee Work Programme (Pages 109 - 114)

13. Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Member Services to be advised of 
any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting) 

14. Exclusion of Press and Public 
To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972

Public Document Pack



PART II
15. Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 16 January 2017 (Pages 115 - 116)

(Paragraph 3, 5 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings. )

16. Elections and Electoral Registration Contract (Pages 117 - 122)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

17. Facilities Management Arrangement (Pages 123 - 128)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

18. HRA Capital Programme 2017/18 Contract Awards (Pages 129 - 136)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Corporate Select Committee
Councillor A Barrow (Chair) Councillor J Douglas (Vice-Chair)
Councillor G Claff Councillor A Fox
Councillor L Grooby Councillor P Hardy
Councillor S Helliwell Councillor D Lomax
Councillor A McKeown Councillor R McKeown
Councillor K Sizeland Councillor J Wharmby



1 
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 

Meeting: Monday, 13 February 2017 at 6.30 pm in The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton 
 

Present: Councillor A Barrow (Chair) 
 

 Councillors G Claff, J Douglas, A Fox, L Grooby, P Hardy, S Helliwell, 
D Lomax, A McKeown, R McKeown, K Sizeland and S Young (substitute for J 
Wharmby) 
 
Councillor T Ashton, R Atkins, J Pritchard and E Thrane were also in 
attendance 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Haken, McCabe and  
J Wharmby 
 

17/56 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
(Agenda Item 4) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 November 2016 be approved as 
a correct record. 
 

17/57 THIRD QUARTER PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL REVIEW 2016/17 
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
The Committee considered the Council’s overall performance, procurement 
and financial position for the period ended 31 December 2016 (“Third 
Quarter 2016/17”). 
 
The report summarised overall financial performance for 2016/17 with 
particular emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council, and 
specific areas for consideration were set out within the report. 
 
The implementation of a procurement strategy was agreed in April 2014, 
and is a key element to achieving the savings included in the Council’s 
Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy. 
 
The performance and customer feedback report provided Councillors with 
an overview of performance in relation to the Council’s corporate plan 
priorities and the associated performance targets and projects.  Comments 
were made regarding the format of the performance report, to which 
members were advised that an Annual Review would be submitted to the 
next meeting of the Committee, following which a meeting of the 
Performance Framework Working Group would be arranged to enable 
members to review the format and content of the report. 
 
Reference was made to the inclusion within the procurement report of the 
Glossop Creative Industries Strategies, and it was requested that there be 
an opportunity for a member briefing around this issue. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Corporate Select Committee 
Monday, 13 February 2017 

 

2 
 

 
In response to a query around the status of the Combined Authority Project, 
the Leader advised that work was on-going with Derbyshire and 
Nottinghamshire to formalise some activities which could be undertaken 
jointly.  A further report would be submitted to this Committee in due course. 
 
In response to a query, it was confirmed that the Council had submitted a 
response to the Derbyshire County Council consultation around parking in 
Buxton, a copy of which would be circulated. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Third Quarter 2016/17 financial, procurement and performance 
position as detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 
paragraph 3.3 of the covering report be noted. 
 

17/58 BUDGET 2017/18 AND UPDATED MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 
2017/18 TO 2020/21 
(Agenda Item 6) 
 
The Committee considered the proposed Budget for 2017/18 updated 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2017/18 – 2020/21, together with the HRA 
Financial Improvement Plan 2017/18 – 20/21, the proposed Efficiency and 
Rationalisation Strategy 2017/18 – 2020/21 and proposed Fees and 
Charges for 2017/18. 
 
A balanced General Fund budget for 2017/18 has been achieved, with the 
inclusion of an efficiency and rationalisation target of £310,000 (as per the 
proposed Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy) and the drawdown of 
£547,020 in reserves.  A balanced HRA budget for 2017/18 has been 
achieved (with a contribution to balances) and an interim reduction to the 
capital programme has been made with schemes included on a priority 
basis pending stock condition information.   
 
It was noted that, due to the timing of the achievement of savings as set out 
in the report, in future years there would be necessity to make further 
drawdowns from the contingency reserves which would result in a reduction 
in the General Fund contingency reserve to £1.4 million by 2020/21. 
 
While the strategy proposed within the report was supported, in response to 
a query regarding the savings targets, members were advised that while 
there were a considerable number of uncertainties in the budget, a number 
of prudent assumptions had been made which would be kept under close 
scrutiny to enable mitigating action to be taken if necessary.   
 
Concern was expressed regarding whether the level of resources within the 
Assets Team could meet demand, and members were advised that the 
Assets Working Group were addressing a number of issues relating to 
assets and that there had been discussions around prioritisation.  It was 
acknowledged that the council’s assets did present an challenge, together 
with opportunities for the Council to make further savings.     
 
RESOLVED: Page 4



Corporate Select Committee 
Monday, 13 February 2017 

 

3 
 

 
That the Executive be requested to recommend that Council: 
 

• Approves the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
Budget for 2017/18 as detailed in Appendix A (section 8); 
 

• Approves the revised Medium Term Financial Plan (2017 to 2020/21) 
as detailed in Appendix A, including the revised Capital Programme 
(attached at Annex A & B); 

 
• Approves the proposed HRA Business Plan – Financial Improvement 

Plan 2017/18 – 2020/12 as detailed in Appendix B; 
 

• Approves the proposed Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy for 
2017/18 – 2020/21 as detailed in Appendix C; 

 
• Approves the proposed Fees and Charges for 2017/18 as detailed in 

Appendix D; 
 

• Approves a Band D Council Tax of £181.11 for 2017/17 (increase of 
1.9%); 

 
• Approves the following HRA Charges: 

o Dwellings rents to reduce by an average of 1% (over 52 
weeks) from £71.47 to £70.73 average per week 

o Garage rents to be increased by 1% (over 52 weeks) from 
£6.10 to £6.16 average per week 

o Other charges including service charges to increase by a 
maximum of 1% 

o Fuel charges at individual blocks have been reviewed based 
on 2015/16 fuel costs, the individual charges are detailed in 
paragraph 8.4 of Appendix A; 
 

• That the view of the Chief Finance Officer that the level of reserves is 
adequate for the Council based on this budget and the circumstances 
in place at the time of preparing it (Appendix A section 7) be noted. 

 
17/59 RIGHT TO BUY RECEIPTS - UPDATE REPORT 

(Agenda Item 7) 
 
The Committee considered an update report on the Right to Buy Scheme, 
which allows the Council to work with registered providers to offer up to 30% 
funding towards the provision of affordable housing throughout the Borough. 
 
Although a range of options and initiatives has been explored in order to use 
the RTB money most efficiently and on appropriate projects to deliver 
affordable housing, the Council has been unable to spend all of the receipts 
that expired on 31 December and will have to pay back the remaining RTB 
receipt of Government, including interest accrued. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. Page 5



Corporate Select Committee 
Monday, 13 February 2017 

 

4 
 

 
 

17/60 HERITAGE REGENERATION GRANTS 
(Agenda Item 8) 
 
The Committee considered an application for a Heritage Regeneration 
Grant. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Executive be recommended to approve a maximum grant of up to 
£10,000 (inc VAT) for eligible works totalling £23,520 (inc VAT) towards the 
reinstatement of a traditional stone roof at 11 Highgate Road, Hayfield. 
 

17/61 SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
(Agenda Item 9) 
 
The following items were added to the work programme: 

• Asset Management – Corporate Select – June 
• Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire negotiations – Corporate Select – 

June 
• White paper – Housing Select - March 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, subject to  the above additions, the Select Committee Work 
Programmes be noted. 
 

17/62 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
(Agenda Item 11) 
 
 
(Councillor Barrow vacated the Chair in favour of Councillor Young, Chair of 
Community Select Committee for the consideration of this item of business) 
 

17/63 ESTABLISHMENT OF A JOINT VENTURE COMPANY FOR THE 
DELIVERY OF WASTE COLLECTION, STREET CLEANSING, GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE & FLEET MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
(Agenda Item 12) 
 
The Committee considered options around the development of a joint 
venture company for the delivery of waste collection, street cleansing, 
grounds maintenance and fleet management services and supported the 
recommendations within the report. 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 8.00 pm 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

 
 

Page 6



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Corporate Select Committee

20th March 2017

Appendices Attached: 
None

1.        Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to agree the process for the review of the 
Council’s performance against the priorities set out in the Corporate Plan      

2. Recommendation

2.1 That Corporate Select agrees to the establishment of a Performance 
Framework Sub-Committee to consider the following:

 A review of the format of the quarterly performance reports;
 The Performance Annual Report;
 Performance targets and actions for 2017/18; and
 Update of the Council’s Corporate Plan 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2015-2019) sets out the aims, 
objectives and priority actions that the Council is working to achieve over this 
period. The plan has a supporting performance framework that measures its 
delivery and aids effective scrutiny through focused and balanced reporting 
which is based on celebrating success and promoting improvement.  

TITLE: Development of the Performance Framework 
and Targets for 2017/18  

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 
Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER: Vanessa Higgins - Information Business 
Partner   

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



3.2 A new framework for 2016/17 which was built around the Council’s key 
objectives whilst also ensuring that the three pillars of value for money 
(efficiency, economy and effectiveness) remained central.    

3.3 The framework is made up monthly, quarterly and annual measures. 
Performance has been reported through new implemented quarterly reports 
which focus on exception with regard to all monthly and quarterly measures. 
This moved away from the previous ‘dashboard’ approach which had been 
used in previous years. 

3.4 It was also agreed that annual measures would be reported in a new Annual 
Report which would be available which would provide an overview of the 
Council’s progress in delivering its Corporate Plan and provide strategic 
intelligence to inform the corporate planning processes. This annual report will 
include details of the comparisons with other local authorities in order to 
provide some benchmarking context.      

3.5 It is proposed that a Performance Framework Sub-Committee is established 
in order to firstly consider a draft of the annual report and then to use this to 
develop performance targets for the 2017/18 financial years.  

3.6 The sub-committee will also be able to give feedback and suggest 
improvements to the format of the quarterly reports. 

  
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The purpose of the performance framework is to enable the monitoring of 
progress against the Council’s corporate priorities. As such it has linkages to 
each of the Council’s Corporate Plan aims.   

5. Options

5.1 There are no options to consider at this stage

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies

6.4 Financial Considerations

Page 8



Effective Performance Management contributes to the Council’s 
financial objectives 

6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Sustainability
None

6.7 Internal and External Consultation
Corporate and Operational Managers have been consulted during 
the process

6.8 Risk Assessment
A robust Performance Framework is a critical tool in controlling and 
mitigating risks.     

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers Location Contact details

V Higgins, Ext 4057 Leek

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

Report to the Corporate Select Committee 
 

20 March 2017 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Appendices Attached:  Appendix A - Draft Data Protection Policy 
 
 

1. Reason for the Report 
 
 The Borough Council has a duty to process information fairly and lawfully and 

to comply with the data protection principles contained within the Data 
Protection Act 1998. A data protection policy assists the Council to meet its 
statutory requirements and is one of the key pieces of evidence looked for 
during any data protection audits carried out by the Information 
Commissioner’s Office (ICO).  

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee requests the Executive to 
approve the revised data protection policy. 
 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The Data Protection Act (DPA) 1998 stipulates that anyone processing 
personal data must comply with eight data protection principles. Failure 
to process personal data lawfully, accurately and fairly can lead to poor 
decision making, inefficient business processes, inconvenience or harm 
to residents and others, reputational damage to the Authority, or 
enforcement action by the Information Commissioner’s Office.  

TITLE: Revised Data Protection Policy 
 
PORTFOLIO: Councillor Thrane - Executive Councillor for Finance 

and Corporate Services 
 
OFFICER: Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer 
   
WARDS: All 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



  

3.2 A revised Data Protection policy is presented with the overarching aim 
of ensuring that the Council meets its requirements under the DPA. It 
also seeks to provide practical advice for staff members to ensure that 
we are processing data fairly and lawfully. The data protection policy 
sets out: 

• practical steps to be followed to comply with the data protection 
principles; 

• the responsibility of staff members when processing personal 
data; 

• the Council’s response to data breaches; 
• how we will communicate privacy information to individuals; 
• the Council’s approach to data sharing; 
• how we will use Privacy Impact Assessment; 
• our approach to responding to requests for information; and  
• information security procedures. 

3.3 The policy applies to councillors when carrying out their role as a 
member of the Council. In such circumstances, councillors are carrying 
out the local authority’s functions and so do not need to register with the 
Information Commissioner in their own right.  Sections 3.5 to 3.12 of the 
revised policy provide specific guidance for councillors. 

 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 This is a cross-cutting policy that impacts on all Council priorities and 
services. 

 
 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 None. The Council needs an up-to-date data protection policy to 
mitigate the risk of misusing information. 

 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1  Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
The data protection policy would apply to the processing of 
community safety-related information. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
All staff members will be expected to operate under the policy in a 
manner that is compatible with the requirements of the Data 
Protection Act 1998. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 

Page 12



  

Not applicable.   
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
There will be some requirements for training officers and Elected 
Members but these costs will be met from existing budgets. 
 

6.5 Legal 
 
The policy seeks to ensure that the Council is compliant with the Data 
Protection Act 1998. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
No specific implications. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
N/A 
 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
Non-compliance with data protection principles can lead to poor 
decision making, inefficient business processes, inconvenience or 
harm to residents and others, reputational damage to the Authority, or 
enforcement action by the Information Commissioner’s Office. 

 

7. Background and Detail 
 

7.1 High Peak Borough Council has to collect and use information about 
people to efficiently and effectively provide quality services for the local 
area. The Council may also be required by law to collect and use 
information to comply with the requirements of central government. The 
information collected by the Authority may include information about 
members of the public and businesses; customers and suppliers; and 
current, past and prospective employees and councillors. 

 
7.2 The Data Protection Act (DPA) 1998 stipulates that anyone processing 

personal data must comply with eight data protection principles. These 
principles are legally enforceable and require that: 

 
• Personal data shall be processed fairly and lawfully and, in 

particular, shall not be processed unless specific conditions are 
met. 

• Personal data shall be obtained only for one or more specified and 
lawful purposes, and shall not be further processed in any manner 
incompatible with that purpose or those purposes. 

• Personal data shall be adequate, relevant and not excessive in 
relation to the purpose or purposes for which they are processed. 

Page 13



  

• Personal data shall be accurate and, where necessary, kept up to 
date. 

• Personal data processed for any purpose or purposes shall not be 
kept for longer than is necessary for that purpose or those 
purposes. 

• Personal data shall be processed in accordance with the rights of 
data subjects under this Act. 

• Appropriate technical and organisational measures shall be taken 
against unauthorised or unlawful processing of personal data and 
against accidental loss or destruction of, or damage to, personal 
data. 

• Personal data shall not be transferred to a country or territory 
outside the European Economic Area1 unless that country or 
territory ensures an adequate level of protection for the rights and 
freedoms of data subjects in relation to the processing of personal 
data. 

 
7.3 It is important that this collection and use of personal data is carried out 

lawfully, accurately and fairly. Failure to do so can lead to a range of 
problems including poor decision making, inefficient business 
processes, inconvenience or harm to residents and others, reputational 
damage to the Authority, or enforcement action by the Information 
Commissioner’s Office. 

 
7.4 The main powers available to the ICO are: 
 

• serve information notices requiring organisations to provide the 
Information Commissioner’s Office with specified information 
within a certain time period; 

• issue undertakings committing an organisation to a particular 
course of action in order to improve its compliance; 

• serve enforcement notices and ‘stop now’ orders where there has 
been a breach, requiring organisations to take (or refrain from 
taking) specified steps in order to ensure they comply with the law; 

• conduct consensual assessments (audits) to check organisations 
are complying; 

• serve assessment notices to conduct compulsory audits to assess 
whether organisations’ processing of personal data follows good 
practice; 

• issue monetary penalty notices, requiring organisations to pay up 
to £500,000 for serious breaches of the DPA occurring on or after 
6 April 2010; 

• prosecute those who commit criminal offences under the Act; and 
• report to Parliament on issues of concern. 

 
7.5 A revised data protection policy is provided at Appendix A. The 

overarching aim of the policy is to ensure that the Council meets the 
requirements of the DPA. It also seeks to provide practical advice for 

                                            
1 The European Economic Area1 includes the EU member states plus Iceland, Liechtenstein and 
Norway. 

Page 14



  

staff members to ensure that we are processing data fairly and lawfully. 
The data protection policy sets out: 

 
• practical steps to be followed to comply with the data protection 

principles; 
• the responsibility of staff members when processing personal 

data; 
• the Council’s response to data breaches; 
• how we will communicate privacy information to individuals; 
• the Council’s approach to data sharing; 
• how we will use Privacy Impact Assessment; 
• our approach to responding to requests for information; and  
• information security procedures. 

 
7.6 The policy applies to councillors when carrying out their role as a 

member of the Council. In such circumstances, councillors are carrying 
out the local authority’s functions and so do not need to register with the 
Information Commissioner in their own right.  Sections 3.5 to 3.12 of the 
revised policy provide specific guidance for councillors. 

 
7.7 When acting on behalf of a political party then an Elected Member will 

normally be able to rely on the parties’ registration (but independents 
will need to have their own registration). When councillors represent 
residents of their ward, they are likely to have to register in their own 
right. For example, if they use personal information to timetable surgery 
appointments or take forward complaints made by local residents. 

 
7.8 The data protection policy forms an important part of the Council’s 

overarching Information Governance strategy and should be read in 
conjunction with that strategy. 

 
7.9 It should be noted that the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), 

which would supersede the Data Protection Act 1998, was on track to 
come into force in the UK on 25 May 2018. The result of the June 2016 
referendum cast doubt on the introduction of the GDPR; however, the 
Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport has indicated that the 
country will “opt into the GDPR and then look later at how best we 
might be able to help British business with data protection while 
maintaining high levels of protection for members of the public.” 

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director (People) and Chief Monitoring Officer 
 
 
Background Papers Location Contact details 

 
David Smith x 4165 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Data Protection Policy 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 High Peak Borough Council has to collect and use information about people to 

efficiently and effectively provide quality services for the local area. The 
Council may also be required by law to collect and use information to comply 
with the requirements of central government. This information collected by the 
authority may include information about members of the public and 
businesses; customers and suppliers; and current, past and prospective 
employees and Councillors.  

 
1.2 It is important that this collection and use of personal data is carried out 

lawfully, accurately and fairly. Failure to do so can lead to a range of problems 
including poor decision making, inefficient business processes, inconvenience 
or harm to residents and others, reputational damage to the authority, or 
enforcement action by the Information Commissioner’s Office. Enforcement 
action can include fines of up to £500,000 for serious breaches of the Data 
Protection Act 1998 (“the Act”) and possible prison sentences for deliberate 
breaches. 

 
1.3 High Peak Borough Council is fully committed to compliance with the 

requirements of the Data Protection Act, which controls the way information is 
handled and gives legal rights to people who have information stored about 
them.  

 
2. General Principles 
 
2.1 The Act stipulates that anyone processing personal data must comply with 

eight data protection principles. These principles are legally enforceable and 
require that: 

 
 Data Protection Principle In practice, you/the Council must: 

1 Personal data shall be processed 
fairly and lawfully and, in 
particular, shall not be processed 
unless specific conditions are met 

 have legitimate grounds for collecting and 
using the personal data; 

 make sure that the individual whom the 
personal data is about has explicitly 
consented to the processing unless a relevant 
exemption applies; 

 not use the data in ways that have unjustified 
adverse effects on the individuals concerned;  

 be transparent about how you intend to use 
the data, and give individuals appropriate 
privacy notices when collecting their personal 
data;  

 handle people’s personal data only in ways 
they would reasonably expect; and  

 make sure you do not do anything unlawful 

Page 17



with the data.  

2 Personal data shall be obtained 
only for one or more specified and 
lawful purposes, and shall not be 
further processed in any manner 
incompatible with that purpose or 
those purposes. 

 be clear from the outset about why you are 
collecting personal data and what you intend 
to do with it;  

 comply with the Act’s fair processing 
requirements – including the duty to give 
privacy notices to individuals when collecting 
their personal data;  

 comply with what the Act says about notifying 
the Information Commissioner; and  

 ensure that if you wish to use or disclose the 
personal data for any purpose that is 
additional to or different from the originally 
specified purpose, the new use or disclosure 
is fair.  

3 Personal data shall be adequate, 
relevant and not excessive in 
relation to the purpose or 
purposes for which they are 
processed. 

 only hold personal data about an individual 
that is sufficient for the purpose you are 
holding it for in relation to that individual; and  

 ensure that you do not hold more information 
than you need for that purpose.  

4 Personal data shall be accurate 
and, where necessary, kept up to 
date. 

 take reasonable steps to ensure the accuracy 
of any personal data you obtain;  

 ensure that the source of any personal data is 
clear;  

 carefully consider any challenges to the 
accuracy of information; and  

 consider whether it is necessary to update the 
information.  

5 Personal data processed for any 
purpose or purposes shall not be 
kept for longer than is necessary 
for that purpose or those 
purposes. 

 review the length of time you keep personal 
data;  

 consider the purpose or purposes you hold 
the information for in deciding whether (and 
for how long) to retain it;  

 securely delete information that is no longer 
needed for this purpose or these purposes; 
and  

 update, archive or securely delete information 
if it goes out of date.  

6 Personal data shall be processed 
in accordance with the rights of 
data subjects under this Act. 

 allow individual’s access to a copy of the 
information comprised in their personal data;  

 provide an opportunity to object to processing 
that is likely to cause or is causing damage or 
distress;  

 allow an individual to prevent processing for 
direct marketing;  

Page 18



 allow individuals to object to decisions being 
taken by automated means; and 

 allow people to have inaccurate personal data 
rectified, blocked, erased or destroyed.  

 (an individual also has a right to claim 
compensation for damages caused by a 
breach of the Act).  

7 Appropriate technical and 
organisational measures shall be 
taken against unauthorised or 
unlawful processing of personal 
data and against accidental loss 
or destruction of, or damage to, 
personal data. 

 design and organise security to fit the nature 
of the personal data you hold and the harm 
that may result from a security breach;  

 be clear about who in the organisation is 
responsible for ensuring information security;  

 make sure you have the right physical and 
technical security, backed up by robust 
policies and procedures and reliable, well-
trained staff; and 

 be ready to respond to any breach of security 
swiftly and effectively.  

8 Personal data shall not be 
transferred to a country or territory 
outside the European Economic 
Area1 unless that country or 
territory ensures an adequate 
level of protection for the rights 
and freedoms of data subjects in 
relation to the processing of 
personal data. 

 contact the Data Protection Officer before 
sending any personal data outside the EEA 

 
2.2 Explanations of various key terms within the Act are provided at Appendix A. 
 
3. Staff and Councillor responsibility for personal data 
 
Staff Members 
 
3.1 All staff members must take reasonable steps to make sure that personal data 

is processed in accordance with the eight data protection principles. To 
support this, the Council will: 

 

 Identify a member of the Senior Management Team to act as Senior 
Information Risk Officer (SIRO) with overall responsibility for overseeing 
the Council’s response to information risk; 

 Identify a Data Protection Officer to develop the Council’s response to 
information risk and act as a source of expertise within the Council; 

 Develop a Data Protection Policy, ensure awareness of the policy, and 
monitor its implementation; 

                                            
1
 The European Economic Area

1
 includes the EU member states plus Iceland, Liechtenstein and 

Norway. 

Page 19



 Hold quarterly Information Risk Group meetings, attended by the owners 
of the Council’s information assets (eg CCTV, Council Tax, Housing, 
Revenues and Benefits systems, etc) to identify possible risks and take 
steps to mitigate against such risks; 

 Provide induction training and regular refresher training for all staff on 
the requirements of the Data Protection Act, with more frequent training 
for key owners of the Council’s information assets; 

 Require Council officers to consider the data protection implications, and 
the potential need to complete a privacy impact assessment (see below), 
within each committee report; 

 Ensure that appropriate physical and technological security measures 
are put in place; 

 Establish a system for responding to Subject Access Requests (Section 
8) and monitor compliance with the system; 

 Register the way in which the Council processes personal information 
with the Information Commissioner; and 

 Carry out regular checks of services’ compliance with this policy. 
 
3.2 Individual officers will be expected to pay regard to the data protection 

principles, and accompanying steps, outlined in Section 2. All managers and 
staff members must follow the Council’s ICT Use and Information Security 
Policy. They must also take steps to ensure that personal data is kept secure 
at all times against unauthorised or unlawful loss or disclosure and in 
particular ensure that: 

 

 Paper files and other records or documents containing 
personal/sensitive data are kept in a secure environment; 

 Personal data are collected for a legitimate purpose (or purposes) and 
are accurate, up to date and deleted in accordance with the Council’s 
data retention policy when no longer needed; 

 A record is maintained of information held by each service to ensure 
fair and lawful processing; 

 All names and addresses (postal or e-mail) are checked to make sure 
that they are correct and up to date before any personal information is 
sent to others; 

 The secure (pin controlled) printing facility is used, where possible, and 
personal information is not allowed to sit uncollected on printers; 

 The Council’s clean desk policy is complied with and personal 
information is not left unattended on desks;  

 Personal information collected by the Council is not transferred to, or 
stored upon, equipment owned by staff members (computers, laptops, 
tablets, smart phones, etc); 

 Personal information is only transported between locations where 
absolutely necessary and that, when doing so, appropriate levels of 
security are applied (eg not leaving folders containing personal 
information unattended in cars or bags, ensuring that memory sticks 
are encrypted/password protected, etc); 

 Any losses of data are reported promptly to the Data Protection Officer; 
and 

Page 20



 Requests for personal information are responded to in line with the 
process established in Section 4. 

 
3.3 Where appropriate, Council contracts should ensure that any contractors, 

consultants, partners or other servants or agents of the Council together with 
their staff who have access to personal data held or processed for or on 
behalf of the Council, are aware of this policy and are fully trained in and are 
aware of their duties and responsibilities under the Act. This also applies to 
the suppliers of ICT systems and services which are designed to store, or 
process, personal data collected by the local authority. Where necessary 
contracts should: 

 

 Ensure that any breach of any provision of the Act and/or this policy will 
be deemed as being a breach of any contract between the Council and 
that individual, company, partner or firm; 

 Require suppliers to demonstrate that they meet the technical 
requirements prescribed by the Government’s Cyber Essentials Scheme. 
The requirements can be found at: 
https://www.cyberstreetwise.com/cyberessentials/files/requirements.pdf 

 Allow data protection audits by the Council of data held on its behalf (if 
requested); 

 Indemnify as appropriate the Council against any prosecutions, claims, 
proceedings, actions or payments of compensation or damages. 

 
3.4 All contractors who process personal information supplied by the Council will 

be required, where necessary to confirm prior to entering into a contract that 
they will abide by the requirements of the Act and this policy. 

 
Councillors 
 
3.5 Councillors may perform three different roles: 
 

 As a member of the council 

 As representative of residents of their ward 

 Representing a political party (particularly at election time). 
 
3.6 When operating as a member of the council, such as acting as a member of a 

committee, then the Councillor is carrying out the local authority’s functions and 
so does not need to register with the Information Commissioner in their own 
right. Councillors should follow the guidance set out in this policy when 
performing this role. 

 
3.7 When acting on behalf of a political party then a Councillor will normally be able 

to rely on their party’s registration (but independents will need to have their own 
registration). When councillors represent residents of their ward, they are likely 
to have to register in their own right. For example, if they use personal 
information to timetable surgery appointments or take forward complaints made 
by local residents. 

 
3.8 When Councillors consider using personal information then they should: 

Page 21

https://www.cyberstreetwise.com/cyberessentials/files/requirements.pdf


 

 decide whether their use of the information would be fair and lawful as 
required by the first data protection principle; 

 make sure that they have the consent of a resident to share information if 
raising a complaint on their behalf; 

 ensure that personal information held by the local authority is not used for 
political purposes unless both the local authority and individuals concerned 
agree; and 

 when campaigning for election, candidates can normally use personal 
information (such as mailing lists) held by their parties but should not use 
information they hold in their role as local residents without the consent of the 
individual. 
 

3.9 If an individual resident requests a councillor to take action on their behalf 
then the councillor will usually have the implied consent to retain any relevant 
personal data provided by the individual, to disclose it appropriately, and to 
receive information relating to the individual from organisations (including the 
local authority) who are being complained about provided this is reasonably 
necessary to fulfil the requested action.  

 
3.10 If there is any doubt about the residents’ wishes, or the information is of a 

sensitive nature, then it would be appropriate to obtain explicit consent from 
the resident for sharing and disclosing the information. 

 
3.11 Candidates for election should be aware that political campaigning falls within 

the definition of direct marketing. 
 
3.12  Further guidance can be found on the Information Commissioner’s website: 
 
https://ico.org.uk/media/1432067/advice-for-elected-and-prospective-councillors.pdf 
 
4. Breaches 
 
4.1 A personal data breach is as a breach of security leading to the accidental or 

unlawful destruction, loss, alteration, unauthorised disclosure of, or access to, 
personal data transmitted, stored, or otherwise processed (General Data 
Protection Regulation 2016). 

 
4.2 All suspected breaches should be reported without undue delay to the 

Council’s Data Protection Officer using the Data Incident Reporting Form that 
can be accessed on the intranet at 
http://hpbcnet/Organisational%20Development/newforms/form.asp. The Data 
Protection Officer will record the breach and, where required, work with the 
service area to examine whether steps could be taken to prevent re-
occurrence of the breach in the future. The referral should describe: 

 

 incident details; 

 date and time of incident; 

 details of person affected; 

 whether the data subjects are aware of the breach 

Page 22

https://ico.org.uk/media/1432067/advice-for-elected-and-prospective-councillors.pdf
http://hpbcnet/Organisational%20Development/newforms/form.asp


 the likely consequence of the breach; and 

 measures taken to address/mitigate the breach. 
 

4.3 Where the personal data breach is likely to result in a high risk to the rights 
and freedoms of the data subject, the Council will communicate the breach to 
the individual(s) concerned without undue delay. The communication to the 
data subject will not occur where: 

 

 The Council has implemented technical and organisational protection 
measures, and those measures were applied to the personal data 
affected by the personal data affected by the personal data breach, in 
particular those that render the personal data unintelligible to any person 
who is not authorised to access it, such as encryption; or 

 The Council has taken subsequent measures which ensure that the high 
risk to the rights and freedoms of the data subjects is no longer likely to 
materialise; or 

 It would involve disproportionate effort. In such a case, there shall be a 
public communication or similar measure whereby the data subjects are 
informed in an equally effective manner. 

 
4.4 Details of the number and types of breaches will be shared with the Council’s 

Information Governance Group. This group will, amongst other things, look for 
any patterns or repeat occurrences and consider what could be done 
corporately to mitigate against any future personal data breaches. 

 
4.5 If the data breach is likely to result in a risk to the rights and freedoms of the 

data subject, then the authority is required to report the breach to the 
Information Commissioner, where feasible, within 72 hours of becoming 
aware of it. The Data Protection Officer will be responsible for making such 
referrals in consultation with the SIRO (or, in his absence, another Executive 
Director). 

 
5. Communicating Privacy Information to Individuals 
 
5.1 The first data protection principle states that personal data should be 

processed fairly and lawfully. The Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) 
notes that fairness has two main elements: 

 

 using information in a way that people would reasonably expect and 
thinking about the impact on them; and  

 ensuring people know how their information will be used, for example by 
providing or making available privacy notices using the most appropriate 
mechanism and, in a digital context, on all the online platforms used to 
deliver services. 

 
5.2 The basic legal requirement is to make sure people know who we are, what 

we intend to do with their information and who it will be shared with or 
disclosed to. When we collect data, we need to be clear why we need it and 
also to predict whether we are likely to do other things with it in the future. 
This requirement will generally be met by the authority through the use of 

Page 23



clear and effective privacy notices to inform individuals about what we do with 
personal data. The authority will also consider whether it is appropriate to use 
other techniques to supplement privacy notices, such as just-in-time notices2, 
on a case-by-case basis. 

 
5.3 The local authority cannot give an individual a choice about the processing of 

personal data if the collection and use of personal information is necessary to 
provide a service or carry out the transaction that the individual has 
requested. This includes where the individual cannot expect to receive what 
he or she has asked for unless any necessary processing of their personal 
information takes place; or because individuals are required by law to provide 
their personal details. In these cases, it is still important to be fair and 
transparent about the collection and use of the personal details. 

 
5.4 In other cases, the Council must ensure that they unambiguously obtain 

consent for the collection of personal data. Consent must be freely given, 
specific and fully informed. Consent must also be revocable and we should 
have procedures in place to action and record it when this happens. 

 
5.5 The authority must actively communicate privacy information by taking 

positive action to provide such information. For example, by providing 
interactive information in an online form explaining why we need particular 
details. This could also be delivered via text-based notifications that appear 
briefly when an individual hovers over a particular field. This is different from 
having privacy information available for members of the public if they look for 
it themselves, for example by clicking on a web link or searching for more 
information on a website. 

 
5.6 The need to actively communicate privacy information is strongest where:  
 

 we are collecting sensitive information; 

 the intended use of the information is likely to be unexpected or 
objectionable; 

 providing personal information, or failing to do so, will have a significant 
effect on the individual; or 

 the information will be shared with another organisation in a way that 
individuals would not expect. 

 
5.7 The ICO suggest that rather than having a single, catch-all privacy notice, 

separate notices aimed at different groups are likely to make information 
clearer and easier to understand. 

 
5.8 The Information Commissioner’s Office has published guidance on privacy 

notices, transparency and control, which can be accessed at: 
https://ico.org.uk/about-the-ico/privacy-notices-transparency-and-control. 

 

                                            
2
 Just-in-time notices work by appearing on the individual’s screen at the point where they input 

personal data, providing a brief message explaining how the information they are about to provide will 
be used. 

Page 24

https://ico.org.uk/about-the-ico/privacy-notices-transparency-and-control


6. Data Sharing 
 
6.1 Data sharing means the disclosure of data from one or more organisations to 

a third party organisation or organisations, or the sharing of data between 
different parts of an organisation. It is recognised that data sharing across the 
authority and with other organisations can play a crucial role in providing 
better, more efficient services for our residents, businesses and others. 
However, it is important that we do this in the right way, and for the right 
reasons, and respect individual’s rights under the Data Protection Act. 

 
6.2 Two data sharing checklists, based upon those published by the ICO, are 

provided at Appendix B. One should be used for the ‘systematic’ sharing of 
data, which generally involves the routine sharing of data sets for an agreed 
purpose, and the other is for ad hoc (or one-off) data sharing. Anyone 
considering sharing of data with others should consider the relevant checklist 
before disclosing any personal data. 

 
6.3 The local authority may have express obligations, or expressed or implied 

powers within legislation to share personal information. In other cases, data 
sharing may not involve personal data, for example where only statistics that 
cannot identify anyone are being shared. It is still important for the authority to 
seek to be transparent about the sharing of personal information in such 
circumstances, wherever appropriate, as outlined in the previous section. 

 
6.4 The general rule is that individuals should, at least, be aware that personal 

data about them has been, or is going to be shared. This applies even if the 
individual’s consent is not needed. There are certain limited circumstances 
under which personal data, even sensitive data, can be shared without the 
individual knowing about it. This includes: 

 

 the prevention or detection of crime 

 the apprehension or prosecution of offenders; or 

 the assessment or collection of tax or duty. 
 
6.5 An organisation processing personal data for one of these purposes is exempt 

from the fairness requirements of the Data Protection Act, but only to the 
extent that applying these provisions would be likely to prejudice the 
crime and taxation purposes. 

 
6.6 The authority needs to have an auditable record of any information that has 

been requested by or from others, the decisions whether or not to disclose the 
requested information and the reasons for that decision. Many organisations 
will request information using their own data request templates. Similarly, 
some organisations will require the authority to use a specific template when 
requesting information from them. This is permissible as long as those 
requesting information from the Council provide the basic information 
contained in the form provided at Appendix C. 

 
6.7 Appendix C provides a standard data request form. This should be used when 

requesting information from other organisations that do not provide or require 

Page 25



the Council to use a specific form. Appendix C also provides a template to be 
used to record decisions about whether to share information following a 
request from another organisation. 

 
6.8 The Information Commissioner has produced a code of practice on data 

sharing, which can be accessed at: https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-
to-data-protection/data-sharing/ 

 
7. Privacy Impact Assessments 
 
7.1 The Council will consider the potential impact of any project that involves the 

use of personal data, or any other activity that could have an impact on the 
privacy of individuals, within its decision making processes. The Council will 
carry out a written privacy impact assessment (PIA) where the potential 
impact on privacy is high, such as where: 

 

 A new IT system for storing and accessing personal data is being 
considered; 

 A data sharing initiative is being developed where two or more 
organisations seek to pool or link sets of personal data; 

 A project seeks to identify people in a particular group or demographic 
and initiate a course of action; 

 Existing data may be used for a new and unexpected or more intrusive 
purpose; 

 A new surveillance system (especially one which monitors members of 
the public) or the application of new technology to an existing system (for 
example adding Automatic number plate recognition capabilities to 
existing CCTV) is being considered; 

 A new database that consolidates information held by separate parts of 
an organisation is being developed;  

 Legislation, policy or strategies is being introduced which will impact on 
privacy through the collection of use of information, or through 
surveillance or other monitoring. 

 
7.2 The PIA will look at information flows, identify the privacy and related risks, 

and identify and evaluate the privacy solutions. The PIA should be signed-off 
by the Council’s Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO) and any outcomes 
built into the project plan. 

 
8 Dealing with access requests 
 
8.1 Section 7 of the Data Protection Act creates a right of access to personal data 

(‘the right of subject access’) and the Act’s sixth data protection principle 
requires the authority to process personal data in accordance with the rights 
the Act gives to individuals. Requests made under Section 7 of the DPA are 
commonly referred to as Subject Access Requests (SAR). It is most often 
used by individuals who want to see a copy of the information an organisation 
holds about them. However, the right of access goes further than this, and an 
individual who makes a written request and pays a fee of £10 is entitled to be: 

Page 26

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/data-sharing/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/data-sharing/


 told whether any personal data is being processed; 

 given a description of the personal data, the reasons it is being 
processed, and whether it will be given to any other organisations or 
people; 

 given a copy of the information comprising the data; and given details of 
the source of the data (where this is available). 

8.2 An individual can also request information about the reasoning behind any 
automated decisions, such as a computer-generated decision or an 
assessment of performance at work. 

8.3 A SAR must be made in writing. The Council has provided a standard form for 
people wishing to submit a request but the Council cannot insist that people 
use it (Appendix D). A separate form has been created for people who only 
wish to request access to CCTV footage (Appendix E). 

8.4 The Council must respond to a subject access request promptly and in any 
event within 40 calendar days of receiving it or (if later) the date on which we 
receive: 

 The fee; 

 Any information that we reasonably need to find the personal data 
covered by the request; and 

 Any information requested to confirm the requester’s identity. 

8.5 Some types of personal data are exempt from the right of subject access and 
so cannot be obtained by making a subject access request. This may include 
personal data that are being processed for: 

 the prevention or detection of crime, 

 the capture or prosecution of offenders, 

 the assessment or collection of tax or duty, 

 protecting members of the public from dishonesty, malpractice, 
incompetence or seriously improper conduct, or in connection with health 
and safety; or 

 use in legal proceedings (including prospective legal proceedings). 

8.6 All Subject Access Requests should be sent to dpo@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
in the first instance. A flowchart showing the process that should be followed 
is provided at Appendix F. 

Third Party Requests 
 
8.7 In addition to subject access requests, the Council also receives requests for 

data relating to individuals from third parties. The Council can only share such 
information if there is a lawful reason for doing so. Such requests can be 
broadly grouped into two different types: 

 
a) Subject Access Requests submitted on behalf of somebody else. 

 

Page 27



8.8 Information can only be released if the person requesting the information can 
provide proof that they are legally authorised to act on the data subject’s 
behalf. This could be in the form of a letter of authority, lasting power of 
attorney, evidence of parental responsibility, etc. The Council will not release 
information in such circumstances if it is not satisfied that the person 
requesting the information has provided sufficient proof of authorisation. The 
Council may contact the data subject to verify that they are happy for the 
requested data to be released. 

 
b) Requests for personal data relating to another individual. 

 
8.9 The Council can only release personal data relating to another individual if 

there is a lawful justification for doing so. Part 4 and Schedule 7 of the Act 
contain several specific exemptions to the disclosure/non-disclosure rules. As 
noted above, this includes information relating to crime and taxation, some 
regulatory activity and that linked to legal proceedings. 

 
8.10 The Council will only release personal information relating to a third party if it 

receives a request in writing that clearly outlines why the person requesting 
the information believes that the data is exempt from the non-disclosure 
provisions. The Council needs to satisfy itself that such requests are 
legitimate and that the stated non-disclosure exemptions apply in that specific 
instance. 

 
8.11 A clear record of the nature of the request and reasons for decision about 

release of information relating to their service need to be maintained by the 
relevant Service Manager. Information should only be released with the 
agreement of the Service Manager and the Data Protection Officer should be 
consulted if there is any uncertainty as to whether information should or 
should not be released. 

 
9. Information security procedures 
 
9.1 Data Protection Principle 7 requires the authority to have appropriate technical 

and organisational measures to guard against unauthorised or unlawful 
processing of personal data and against accidental loss or destruction of, or 
damage to, personal data. 

 
9.2 All staff members and Councillors are expected to follow the ICT Use and 

Security Policy. Key actions include: 
 

 Choosing a password of suitable complexity that cannot easily be 
guessed; 

 Not disclosing passwords to any other person; 

 Not leaving desktop PC/terminal equipment unattended whilst still logged 
onto the system; 

 Only running software that you are authorised to use and not installing 
any software onto a PC; 

 Following the Internet and E-mail Usage policy; 

Page 28



 Suitably marking e-mails containing Protected or Restricted data in the 
subject line; 

 Reporting information security incidents and/or security breaches 
immediately to the Information Security Officer and/or IT Service. This 
includes theft or loss of equipment and/or data;  

 Not allowing individuals that you don’t know to pass unchallenged 
through a secure door;  

 Supervising visitors; and  

 Challenging people who are not wearing their identification or a visitor’s 
badge. 

 
10. Contact details 
 

Data Protection Officer 
High Peak Borough Council 
Buxton Town Hall 
Market Place 
Buxton 
Derbyshire 
SK17 6EL 
dpo@highpeak.gov.uk 

 

Page 29



Appendix A Definitions 
 
Data means information which –  
 
(a) is being processed by means of equipment operating automatically in response 
to instructions given for that purpose, 
(b) is recorded with the intention that it should be processed by means of such 
equipment, 
(c) is recorded as part of a relevant filing system or with the intention that it should 
form part of a relevant filing system, 
(d) does not fall within paragraph (a), (b) or (c) but forms part of an accessible 
record. For the local authority, this means information held for housing or social 
services purposes  
(e) is recorded information held by a public authority and does not fall within any of 
paragraphs (a) to (d). 
 
Personal data means data which relate to a living individual who can be identified –  
(a) from those data, or  
(b) from those data and other information which is in the possession of, or is likely to 
come into the possession of, the data controller,  
and includes any expression of opinion about the individual and any indication of the 
intentions of the data controller or any other person in respect of the individual. 
 
It is important to note that, where the ability to identify an individual depends partly 
on the data held and partly on other information (not necessarily data), the data held 
will still be “personal data”. 
 
The definition of personal data also specifically includes opinions about the 
individual, or what is intended for them. 
 
Sensitive personal data means personal data consisting of information as to –  
a) the racial or ethnic origin of the data subject,  

b) his political opinions,  

c) his religious beliefs or other beliefs of a similar nature,  

d) whether he is a member of a trade union (within the meaning of the Trade Union 
and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992),  

e) his physical or mental health or condition,  

f) his sexual life,  

g) the commission or alleged commission by him of any offence, or  

h) any proceedings for any offence committed or alleged to have been committed by 
him, the disposal of such proceedings or the sentence of any court in such 
proceedings.  
 
The presumption is that, because information about these matters could be used in a 
discriminatory way, and is likely to be of a private nature, it needs to be treated with 
even greater care than other personal data. In particular, if you are processing 

Page 30



sensitive personal data you must satisfy one or more of the conditions for processing 
which apply specifically to such data (Schedules 2 and 3 of the Act), as well as one 
of the general conditions which apply in every case. The nature of the data is also a 
factor in deciding what security is appropriate. 
 
Processing, in relation to information or data, means obtaining, recording or holding 
the information or data or carrying out any operation or set of operations on the 
information or data, including –  
a) organisation, adaptation or alteration of the information or data,  

b) retrieval, consultation or use of the information or data,  

c) disclosure of the information or data by transmission, dissemination or otherwise 
making available, or  
d) alignment, combination, blocking, erasure or destruction of the information or 
data.  
 
The definition of processing is very wide and it is difficult to think of anything that the 
local authority might do with data that will not be processing. 
 
Data subject means an individual who is the subject of personal data. In other 
words, the data subject is the individual whom particular personal data is about. The 
Act does not count as a data subject an individual who has died or who cannot be 
identified or distinguished from others. 
 
Data controller means a person who (either alone or jointly or in common with other 
persons) determines the purposes for which and the manner in which any personal 
data are, or are to be, processed. Data controllers must ensure that any processing 
of personal data for which they are responsible complies with the Act. Failure to do 
so risks enforcement action, even prosecution, and compensation claims from 
individuals. 
 
Data processor, in relation to personal data, means any person (other than an 
employee of the data controller) who processes the data on behalf of the data 
controller. 

Page 31



Appendix B Data sharing checklist  
 
Systematic data sharing 
 
Scenario: You want to enter into an agreement to share personal data on an ongoing 
basis 
 
Is the sharing justified? 
 
Key points to consider: 

 What is the sharing meant to achieve? 

 Have you assessed the potential benefits and risks to individuals and/or 
society of sharing or not sharing? 

 Is the sharing proportionate to the issue you are addressing? 

 Could the objective be achieved without sharing personal data? 
 
Do you have the power to share? 
 
Key points to consider: 

 Any relevant functions or powers of the organisation. 

 The nature of the information you have been asked to share (for example was 
it given in confidence?). 

 Any legal obligation to share information (for example a statutory requirement 
or a court order). 

 
If you decide to share 
 
It is good practice to have a data sharing agreement in place. 
 
As well as considering the key points above, your data sharing agreement should 
cover the following issues: 

 What information needs to be shared. 

 The organisations that will be involved. 

 What you need to tell people about the data sharing and how you will 
communicate that information. 

 Measures to ensure adequate security is in place to protect the data. 

 What arrangements need to be in place to provide individuals with access to 
their personal data if they request it. 

 Agreed common retention periods for the data. 

 Processes to ensure secure deletion takes place. 
 

Page 32



Data sharing checklist – one off requests 
 
Scenario: You are asked to share personal data relating to an individual in ‘one off’ 
circumstances 
 
Is the sharing justified? 
 
Key points to consider: 

 Do you think you should share the information? 

 Have you assessed the potential benefits and risks to individuals and/or 
society of sharing or not sharing? 

 Do you have concerns that an individual is at risk of serious harm? 

 Do you need to consider an exemption in the DPA to share? 
 
Do you have the power to share? 
 
Key points to consider: 

 Any relevant functions or powers of the organisation. 

 The nature of the information you have been asked to share (for example was 
it given in confidence?). 

 Any legal obligation to share information (for example a statutory requirement 
or a court order). 

 
If you decide to share 
 
Key points to consider: 

 What information do you need to share? 
– Only share what is necessary. 
– Distinguish fact from opinion. 

 How should the information be shared? 
– Information must be shared securely. 
– Ensure you are giving information to the right person. 

 Consider whether it is appropriate/safe to inform the individual that you have 
shared their information. 
 

Record your decision 
 
Record your data sharing decision and your reasoning – whether or not you shared 
the information. 
 
If you share information you should record: 

 What information was shared and for what purpose. 

 Who it was shared with. 

 When it was shared. 

 Your justification for sharing. 

 Whether the information was shared with or without consent. 

Page 33



Appendix C Data Sharing Forms 
 
Data Sharing Request Form 
 

 
 

Request for Disclosure of Personal Information 
Under Section 29 of the Data Protection Act 1998 

 
I am an officer of High Peak Borough Council making enquiries for the 
purpose(s) of: 
 
{amend has applicable} 
 

 the prevention or detection of crime, . 

 the apprehension or prosecution of offenders, 

 the assessment or collection of any tax or duty or of any imposition of a similar 

nature. 

Nature of enquiry: 
 
{Tell them why you need the information} 
 

Name and position of person 
requesting data 

 

Date of request  

Data requested  

Date required by  

Any specific arrangements re: 
retention/deletion of data: 

 

 
I confirm that the information requested is required for the prevention or 
detection of crime, or for the apprehension or prosecution of offenders, and 
that failure to provide the information will, in my view, be likely to prejudice 
these matters 
 

Signed:  

Dated:  

 
 

Name of organisation  

Name and position of person 
requesting data 

 

Date of request  

Reference to data sharing agreement  

Page 34



Data requested  

Purpose  

Date required by  

Any specific arrangements re: 
retention/deletion of data: 

 

Signed:  

Dated:  

 
 

Page 35



Data Sharing Decision Form 
 
To be used by other organisations when requesting information from the authority.  
 
The authority will accept requests submitted on organisations’ own forms provided 
that any such requests include full details of who is making the request, the 
reason(s) why the information has been requested, and reference to any specific 
exemptions within the Data Protection Act 1998. 
 

 
 

Request for Disclosure of Personal Information 
 
 

I am an officer of {INSERT ORGANISATION} making enquiries for the 
purpose(s) of: 
 

 {specify purposes} 
 
Nature of enquiry: 
 
{Tell us why you need the information} 
 

Name and position of person 
requesting data 

 

Date of request  

Data requested  

Date required by  

Any specific arrangements re: 
retention/deletion of data: 

 

 
I confirm that the information requested is required for the purposes outlined 
above. 
 

Signed:  

Dated:  

 
 

Name of organisation  

Name and position of person 
requesting data 

 

Date of request  

Reference to data sharing agreement  

Data requested  

Purpose  

Page 36



Date required by  

Any specific arrangements re: 
retention/deletion of data: 

 

Signed:  

Dated:  

 

Page 37



Record of Decision to Share/Not Share Information 
 

Who requested the 
information? 
(Name of individual and 
organisation) 

 

What information was 
requested 

 

What was the 
information needed for 

 

What information was 
shared? 

 
 
 

What was your 
justification for 
sharing/not sharing? 

 

Was the information 
shared with or without 
consent? 

 

 
 
Name: ___________________________________________________________  
 
Job title: _________________________________________________________  
 
Service: __________________________________________________________  

Page 38



Appendix D Subject Access Request Form 

 

 
 

Subject Access Request Form 
 

Data Protection Act 1998 
 
Under the Data Protection Act 1998, you (the “Data Subject”) are entitled to request 
access to personal information held about you by High Peak Borough Council. 
Completing this form will assist us in locating your information quickly and efficiently. 
 
Please note that you will be required to provide proof of your identity (see section 5) 
and pay a fee of £10 before your request is processed. 
 
If you are only requesting CCTV images please use the separate CCTV subject 
access request form. 
 
Section 1 Your Details 
 

Surname/Family 
Name 

 

First Name(s)  

Title  

Previously known 
as (if applicable) 

 

Current Address  
 
 
 
 
 

Postcode  

Date of Birth  

Telephone Number  

E-Mail  

 
If you are requesting historical data, please provide details of any previous 
addresses to assist us to find the information that you are requesting. 
 

Previous Address(es) Date of Occupancy 

From To 

   

   

   

 

Page 39



Section 2 Whose information are you requesting? 
 
My own (go to section 4) 
Someone else’s 
Both my own and someone else’s 
 
Section 3 If you are requesting someone else’s information, whose is it? 

Please provide their details: 
 

Surname/Family 
Name 

 

First Name(s)  

Title  

Previously known 
as (if applicable) 

 

Current Address  
 
 
 
 
 

Postcode  

Date of Birth  

Telephone Number  

E-Mail  

 
If you are requesting historical data, please provide details of any previous 
addresses to assist us to find the information that you are requesting. 
 

Previous Address(es) Date of Occupancy 

From To 

   

   

   

 
What is your 
relationship to the data 
subject (e.g. parent, 
carer, legal 
representative) 

 

Do you have legal 
authority to request 
the data subject’s 
information? 

 

If the data subject is 
under 16, do you 
have parental 
responsibility for 
them? 

 

 

Page 40



You must provide proof that you are legally authorised to act on the data subject’s 
behalf. This may be in the form of a letter of authority, lasting power of attorney, 
evidence of parental responsibility, etc. 
 
You must also provide proof that you are the person authorised to act on behalf of 
the data subject by providing a copy of your birth certificate, Driving Licence or two 
utility bills.   
 
Section 4 What information are you requesting? 
 
Please help us deal with your request quickly and efficiently by giving as much detail 
as possible about the information you want. If possible, please restrict your request 
to a particular service, period of time or incident to enable us to respond to your 
request quickly and efficiently. If necessary continue this section on a separate page. 
 

Department(s)/service(s) 
that you think hold the 
information that you are 
requesting (if known) 

 

Time periods that you 
are interested in 

 

Description of 
information that you 
want to see. Please 
include any known 
reference numbers 

 
 
 

 
Section 5 Proof of Identification and Entitlement 
 
You must provide proof of your name and address so that we only give information 
to the correct person. We require two pieces of information showing your name and 
address. In some cases, such as if you are asking us to release information of a 
sensitive nature, further information may be required. 
 
Recent (less than 3 months old) utility bill 
Bank statement 
Passport or Photo ID driving licence 
Change of name document(s) if relevant 
 
Under the Data Protection Act, only the data subject has the right to ask to see their 
own records. We normally expect the data access request to be made by the data 
subject. In some circumstances, the data subject may wish to appoint someone else 
to make the subject request on their behalf. In such cases, we will only release the 
data on receipt of proof of entitlement to request data on the data subject’s behalf. 
This should include a letter of authority from the data subject. 
 
Document(s) supplied as proof of entitlement. Please describe  what 
document(s) you are providing. 
 
 

Page 41



Section 6 Payment 
 
A fee of £10 must be paid before the Council will process your request for 
information. 

 

Payment may be made by: 
 

 Posting a personal cheque or postal order (made payable to High Peak 
Borough Council), together with a copy of this form or a written request for 
information, to High Peak Borough Council, Buxton Town Hall, Market Place, 
Buxton, Derbyshire SK17 6EL or 

 Visiting in person, bringing a copy of this form or a written request for 
information, and paying by credit/debit card personal cheque or postal order 
at the Council Offices in Glossop or Buxton. 

 

Page 42



Appendix E Subject Access Request Form (CCTV) 
 

How to Apply For Access To Information Held On the CCTV 
System 

 
These notes explain how you can find out what information, if any, is held  about you on the 
CCTV System. 

Your Rights 

Subject to certain exemptions, you have a right to be told whether any personal data is held  

about you. You also have a right to a copy of the information in a permanent form except where 

the supply of such a copy is not possible or would involve disproportionate effort, or data does 

not fall within the Data Protection Act 1998 or if you agree otherwise. High Peak Borough 

Council will only give that information if it is satisfied as to your identity.  

If release of the information will disclose information relating to another  individual(s), who can 

be identified from that information, the High Peak Borough Council is not obliged to comply with 

an access request unless - 

• The other individual has consented to the disclosure of information, or 

• It is reasonable in all the circumstances to comply with the request without the 

consent of the other individual(s) 

High Peak Borough Council CCTV System Rights 

High Peak Borough Council may deny access to information where the Act  allows or does not 

apply. The main exemptions in relation to information held on the CCTV System are where the 

information may be held for: 

• Prevention and detection of crime 

• Apprehension and prosecution  of offenders 

• Where the Data protection Act 1998 does not apply (Where not used to capture 

identifiable individuals or information relating to individuals) 

and giving you the information may be likely to prejudice any of these purposes. 

Fee 

A fee of £10 is payable for each access request, which must be in pounds  sterling. Cheques, 
Postal Orders, etc. should be made payable to High Peak Borough Council 

 
THE APPLICATION FORM: (N.B.  ALL sections of the form must be completed. Failure 
to do so may delay 
your application.) 
 
Section 1 Asks you to give information about yourself that will help us confirm your identity . We 

have a duty to ensure that  information  it holds  is ensure and it must be satisfied that 
you are who you say you are. 

 
Section 2 Asks you to provide evidence of your identity by producing  TWO official documents 

(which between them clearly show your name, date of birth and current address) 
together with a recent full photograph of you. 

 
Section 3 The declaration must be signed by you. 
 
When you have completed and checked this form, take or send it together with the required 
TWO identification documents, photograph and fee to: The CCTV Manager, High Peak 
Borough Council, Buxton Town Hall, Market Place, Buxton, Derbyshire SK17 6EL. 

 

Page 43



SECTION 1 About Yourself 

 
The information requested  below is to help us (a) satisfy itself as to your identity 
and (b) find any data held about you. 
 

PLEASE USE BLOCK CAPITAL LETTERS 

 

Title (tick box as appropriate) Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  

Other title (e.g. Dr., Rev., etc.)  

Surname/family name  

First names   

Maiden name/former names  

Sex (tick box) Female  Male  

Height  

Date of Birth  

Ethnicity  

 

Current address:  

 

 

 

Post code: 

Telephone 
number 

(in case we need to 
contact you) 

 

 

Previous address  
 
 
 

Date of occupancy From: 

 

To: 

 

Previous address  
 
 

Date of occupancy From: 
 

To: 

Previous address  

 
 
 

Date of occupancy From: 
 

To: 

 

Page 44



 

SECTION 2 PROOF OF IDENTITY 

 

To help establish your identity your application must be accompanied by TWO 

official documents that between them clearly show your name, date of birth and 

current address. 

 
For example: a birth/adoption certificate, driving license, medical card, passport 

or other official document that shows your name and address. 

 
Also a recent, full face photograph of yourself . 
 
Failure to provide this proof of identity may delay your application. 

 

SECTION 3 SUPPLY OF INFORMATION 
 

You have a right, subject to certain exceptions, to receive a copy of the 

information in a permanent form. Do you wish to: 

 
TICK ONE 
 

(a) View the information and receive a permanent copy Yes  No  

(b) Only view the information  Yes  No  

 

SECTION 4 DECLARATION 
 
DECLARATION (to be signed by the applicant) 

 
The information that I have supplied in this application is correct and I am the 

person to whom it relates. 

 

Signed by: _______________________  Date: ____________________  
 
Warning - a person who impersonates or attempts to impersonate 
another may be guilty of an offence 

 

Page 45



 

  30 

SECTION 5 TO HELP US FIND THE INFORMATION 
 

If the information you have requested refers to a specific offence or 

incident, please  complete this Section. 

 

Were you: (tick box below as applicable) 

 

A person reporting an offence or incident  

A witness to an offence or incident  

A victim of an offence  

A person accused or convicted of an offence  

 

Other – please explain 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Dates(s) and time(s) of 
incidents 

 
 
 

Place incident happened 
 

 
 

Brief details  
 
 
 
 

 
If the information involves a vehicle then please complete the following: 

  

Make  

Model  

Colour  

Registration number  

Other distinguishing 
features 

 

 
Please note: We will require proof that you own the vehicle or were in the vehicle at 
the time. 

 

Page 46



 

  31 

These notes are only a guide. The law is set out in the Data Protection Act, 1998, 
obtainable from The Stationery Office. Further information and advice may be 
obtained from: The Office of the Information Commissioner, Wycliffe House, Water 
Lane, Wilmslow, Cheshire, SK9 5AF. 

 

Please note that this application for access to information must be made direct to 
High Peak Borough Council and NOT to the Information Commissioner 
 
OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
 
Please complete ALL of this Section (refer to 'CHECK' box above). 
 

 

Application checked and legible?  

 

 
Date Application Received 

 

Identification documents checked?   

 
Fee Paid 

 
Details of two documents 

 
 
 
 

Documents returned 
 

 

Officer name 
 

 

Date 
 

 

 
 

. 
 
 
 

Page 47



 

  32 

Appendix F Subject Access Request Flowchart 
 

 

Subject Access Request submitted to Council 

Send SAR to Data Protection Officer 

Has applicant sent £10 fee, proof of identity and sufficient  
info to understand request? 

Write to applicant requesting fee, proof of identity, 
evidence of entitlement and/or additional information 

Send acknowledgement to applicant, stating that response  
will be received within 40 days 

Does the Council hold the information that has  
been requested? 

Inform applicant  that we do not hold requested data 

Send request to relevant service area s 

Data Protection Officer logs 

Are we obliged to disclose the information? 

Is the applicant requesting information about themselves? 

Inform applicant that we do not hold any personal 
data that we are required to reveal 

Does the it contain information about other people? 

Does the information contain complex terms or codes? 

Send copy of information within 40 days of receiving request. 
Explain what searches have been made in response to the 
SAR  and the information revealed by those searches. 

Has third party provided evidence of 
entitlement to act on behalf of 
individual? 

Is it reasonable to release without consent of 

Ask for consent, where appropriate. If consent not 
given, redact and disclose as much as possible 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N Y 
Y 

Y 

N 

Provide explanations so that  information can be  
understood 

N 

Y 

Y 
Y 

Y 

Compliance with SARsmonitored at Information 
Governance Steering Group meetings 

Does the request relate to ‘unstructured 
data’? And, if so, would the cost of complying exceed  
£450 

N 

Inform applicant that cost of complying would 
limits set out by Freedom of Information and 
Protection Act (appropriate Limit and Fees)  
Regulations 2004 and that request will not be 

Page 48



 
 

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

Report to Corporate Select Committee 
 

 20 March 2017 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached: 
 
Appendix A:  Corporate Equality Objectives 2015/16 
Appendix B:  Corporate Equality Objectives 2017/18 
 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report: The report provides an update on the 

implementation of the Council’s Equality Objectives. 
 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 To note the actions proposed in the report, including agreement to 
adopt revised Corporate Equality Objectives. 

 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 In 2015 both Alliance Councils adopted a new Equality and Diversity 
Policy and approved Corporate Equality Objectives. 

 
3.2 Equality research has been undertaken following agreement of these 

objectives and progress made to achieve the Council’s objectives.  
Detail as to the progress against the agreed actions is included at 
section 7.3 of the report. 

TITLE:  Corporate Equality Objectives 
 
PORTFOLIO: Councillor Thrane - Executive Councillor for 

Finance and Corporate Services 
 
OFFICER: Mark Forrester - Democratic & Community Services 

Manager 
 
WARDS:  Non specific 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



 
3.3 It is proposed to retain, with minor amendment, the current Equality 

Objectives for 2017/18 as attached at Appendix B of the report. 
 
 

4.       How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 This report relates to the Corporate Aim of providing Quality Services in 
Partnership with Communities.  

 
 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 That the Executive considers and comments on the proposed 
Corporate Equality Objectives (Recommended). 

 
5.2 That the Executive does not consider or comment on the Corporate 

Equality Objectives (Not recommended). 
 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
Fulfilling the duties of the Equality Act 2010 will contribute to achieving 
increased safety for the most vulnerable within our communities. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
The Joint Equality and Diversity Policy supports the Council’s approach 
to providing a modern and diverse workforce. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Undertaking the actions associated with the proposed Corporate Equality 
Objectives will enable the Alliance Councils to meet their Equality Duties. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
There are no direct financial implications from the proposed policy and 
actions.  
 

6.5 Legal 
 
The Equality Act 2010 places a duty on the Council to publish Equality 
Objectives and report on their achievement. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
None. 

Page 50



 
6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
The proposed Corporate Equality Objectives provide for consultation with 
‘protected groups’. 
 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
An effective policy and implemented plan of action will reduce the risk of 
poor decision making and legal challenge. 
 
 

7. Background and Detail 
 

7.1 The Equality Act 2010 places a number of duties on Councils, including 
the duty to publish evidence of compliance with the duties in the Act 
and the Council’s Equality Objectives. 
 

7.2 In 2015 both Alliance Councils adopted a new Equality and Diversity 
Policy and approved Corporate Equality Objectives (Appendix A 
attached). 

 
7.3 Progress against the actions proposed in the Action Plan agreed in 

2015 is as follows: 
 

High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
Equality & Diversity Scheme: Action Plan 2015 

Equality Objectives Proposed actions. Progress 
To understand who lives 
in our communities and 
their needs. 

Identifying Customer 
Relationship Management 
(CRM) data and customer 
information held within 
services and determining how 
this information can be 
monitored and used to 
influence service delivery. 

Work took place to 
establish information on 
service users as part of the 
Transformation process 
and the proposed new 
CRM system will provide 
the required improvement 
in equalities data and 
customer insight. 
 
Data on ‘protected groups’ 
in the Borough/District has 
been collated and made 
available within the Council. 
 
Initial research and 
engagement with protected 
groups was undertaken in 
2016. 

To clearly state our 
equality priorities and 
ensure that we have 

Confirming the performance 
monitoring mechanisms for 
equalities linked to the 

The service planning 
process commenced in 
2016/17 and this element of 

Page 51



systems in place to 
achieve them. 

service planning process for 
2015/16 onwards. 

the plan is continuing.  Any 
equalities issues or training 
needs identified as part of 
the service planning 
process have been 
captured and included in 
the Learning and 
Development Framework. 

To ensure that we 
include those with 
‘protected 
characteristics’ in our 
consultation and 
engagement processes. 

Reviewing the consultation 
policy/strategy to ensure that 
mechanisms for reaching 
‘protected characteristic’ 
groups are in place. 

The policy has been 
reviewed and a revised 
approach proposed (March 
2017). 
 
Initial research and 
engagement with protected 
groups was undertaken in 
2016. 

To ensure that equality 
performance actions are 
included in relevant 
service plans and 
monitored. 

Ensure systematic completion 
of Equality Impact 
Assessments (EIAs). 

Key decisions have been 
informed by an Equality 
Impact Assessment. Each 
relevant decision must 
have sufficient evidence 
that equality was 
considered appropriately. 
 
The Modern Gov. 
committee management 
system provides an 
opportunity to ensure 
robust compliance. 

To ensure that our 
workforce reflects as far 
as possible the makeup 
of the community we 
serve 

Reviewing the workforce 
balance as part of our 
workforce development 
strategy to put procedures in 
place to make the workforce 
more representative of our 
communities. 

The Transformation Service 
has been reviewing HR 
policy and practice. 
 
Work has been initiated 
with the University of Derby 
to deliver a comprehensive 
programme of training for 
staff.  

 
7.4 The Equality Objectives approved in 2015 were intended to be ‘holding’ 

or ‘enabling’ objectives with the expectation that work undertaken 
would inform the development of outcome focused objectives – that is 
focused on what difference would be made for local communities.  The 
assumption was that further research and engagement with protected 
groups would provide evidence of need. 

 
Community Engagement 
 

Page 52



7.5 In 2016 Engaging Communities Staffordshire undertook engagement 
work on behalf of both Alliance Councils. Their report identifies the 
groups they engaged with, the challenges and difficulties they faced in 
making contact with some of the groups, the insights gained and 
recommendations for building contact with these groups. 

 
7.6 The challenges and difficulties of engagement are thought to be 

reflective of the fact that individuals identified as belonging to some of 
the groups are few in number. One consequence is that areas such as 
High Peak and Staffordshire Moorlands, unlike larger urban 
settlements, do not have voluntary sector organisations associated with 
all of the groups. These groups tend to be targeted for engagement 
purposes by urban authorities. 

 
7.7 The result is that the work does not add significantly to our 

understanding of the needs of these groups of people and does not 
provide evidence that specific outcome focused equality objectives are 
required. For example, the report identified issues relating to jobs, 
housing and community safety are already priorities for the Alliance 
Councils. The critical point in relation to demonstrating the Council’s 
compliance with the Equality Act is that the Council can show a serious 
attempt to engage has been made. The Equality Act does not impose 
an unreasonable expectation in relation to engagement. 

 
7.8 In determining new Equality Objectives for the Councils three points are 

particularly relevant: 
 

7.8.1 The recommendations from the report about future consultation 
and engagement have been integrated into the Alliance 
Councils’ revised Consultation Policy. 
  

7.8.2 The need to achieve efficiency savings through service change 
continues to be one of the most significant areas of Council 
activity and therefore a focus for future consultation. 
Engagement with protected groups will consequently be focused 
on key issues.  
 

7.8.3 While the current Equality Objectives are not framed as 
outcomes the actions associated with them will lead the Council 
to focus on key issues and, therefore, potential outcomes for 
protected groups. 

 
Proposed Way Forward 

 
7.9 It is proposed that the Council retains, with slight amendment, the 

current equality objectives for 2017/18 (as attached at Appendix B). 
 

7.10 Key actions for future activity include: 
 

Page 53



• Data - Continuing to develop customer insight in relation to 
groups with protected characteristics and staff data through 
the staff survey. 

• Training - Implementing the planned equality and diversity 
awareness training and training in the Council’s policies and 
procedures. 

• Consultation - Undertaking consultation with protected 
groups as set out in the Council’s consultation policy. 

• Integrating Equality Impact Assessments into the Modern 
Gov. committee management system to ensure appropriate 
consideration of equalities matters in all Council decision 
making. 

 
 

 
 
 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (People) & Monitoring Officer 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

Equality Research Report 
 

Buxton Town Hall Mark Forrester, 
Democratic and 
Community Services 
Manager 
Ext 4175 
 

 

Page 54



 1 

Appendix A 
 

Corporate Equality Objectives: 2015 -16 
 

High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
Equality & Diversity Scheme: Action Plan 2015 

What do we want to achieve? 
(Equality Objectives) 

What are we doing? 

Knowing our communities 
To understand who lives in our 
communities and their needs. 

• Identifying Customer Relationship 
Management (CRM) data and customer 
information held within services and 
determining how this information can be 
monitored and used to influence service 
delivery. 

Place shaping, leadership and commitment 
To clearly state our equality priorities and 
ensure that we have systems in place to 
achieve them. 

• Confirming the performance monitoring 
mechanisms for equalities linked to the 
service planning process for 2015/16 
onwards. 

Community engagement and satisfaction 
To ensure that we include those with 
‘protected characteristics’ in our 
consultation and engagement processes. 

• Reviewing the consultation 
policy/strategy to ensure that 
mechanisms for reaching ‘protected 
characteristic’ groups are in place. 

Responsive services and Customer care 
To ensure that equality performance 
actions are included in relevant service 
plans and monitored. 

• Ensure systematic completion of 
Equality Impact Assessments. 

A modern and diverse workforce 
To ensure that our workforce reflects as 
far as possible the makeup of the 
community we serve 

• Reviewing the workforce balance as 
part of our workforce development 
strategy to put procedures in place to 
make the workforce more 
representative of our communities. 

 
 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 
 

Corporate Equality Objectives 2017/18 
 

High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
Equality & Diversity Scheme: Action Plan 2017 

What do we want to achieve? 
(Equality Objectives) 

What are we doing? 

Knowing our communities 
To understand who lives in our 
communities and their needs. 

• Identifying Customer Relationship 
Management (CRM) data and 
determining how this information should  
influence service delivery. 

Place shaping, leadership and commitment 
To clearly state our equality priorities and 
ensure that we have systems in place to 
achieve them. 

• Confirming the performance monitoring 
mechanisms for equalities linked to the 
service planning process for 2017/18 
onwards. 

Community engagement and satisfaction 
To ensure that we include those with 
‘protected characteristics’ in our 
consultation and engagement processes. 

• Undertake the actions identified in the 
new Corporate Consultation Policy. 

Responsive services and Customer care 
To ensure that equality performance 
actions are included in relevant service 
plans and monitored. 

• Ensure systematic completion of 
Equality Impact Assessments as part of 
the Modern Gov. committee 
management process. 

A modern and diverse workforce 
To ensure that our workforce reflects as 
far as possible the makeup of the 
community we serve and has the 
necessary skills  

• Undertake the staff survey and consider 
appropriate actions. 

• Develop and implement a 
comprehensive equality training 
programme. 

 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

Report to Corporate Select Committee 
 

 20 March 2017 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attached:  Appendix 1 - Draft Consultation and Engagement Policy 
 

 
1. Reason for the Report:  
 

To propose to the Executive a revised Consultation and Engagement Policy to 
ensure that the Council’s consultation processes are robust.  

 
 
2. Recommendation 
 

2.1 That the Executive be recommended to approve the proposals made at 
7.5 of this report and adopts the new Consultation and Engagement 
Policy (Attached at Appendix 1). 

 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 To make good decisions the Council needs to understand the views, 
needs and priorities of the local community and, recognising that our 
community is diverse, we need to understand the perspectives of the 
different groups of people within our community. To avoid costly legal 
challenge to its decisions the Council must also be able to demonstrate 
that it has consulted local communities appropriately and taken account 
of their feedback. 
 

TITLE: Consultation and Engagement Policy 
 
PORTFOLIO: Councillor Thrane - Executive Councillor for 

Finance and Corporate Services 
 
OFFICER: Mark Forrester - Democratic & Community Services 

Manager 
   
WARDS:  Non specific 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



  

3.2 The report reflects on the Council’s current practice around consultation 
and engagement activity, including a review of the use of Citizens’ 
Panels, and recommends a revised approach. 
 

3.3 It is proposed to adopt a new Consultation and Engagement Policy 
(attached at Appendix 1) and to focus corporate consultation activity in 
the way proposed at section 7.5 of this report.  It is recommended that 
Councillors will be informed of the consultation and engagement plans 
for the Borough as a whole, and those specifically in relation to their 
wards, prior to the start of the planned activities and will continue to be 
consulted directly, as now, on specific items affecting their wards. 

 
 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 Effective consultation will support the achievement of all the Council’s 
Corporate Priorities. 

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 That the Executive approves the proposed focus for corporate 
consultation and the revised Consultation and Engagement Policy 
(recommended). 

 
5.2 That the Executive does not approve the proposed focus for corporate 

consultation and the revised Consultation and Engagement Policy (not 
recommended). 

 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
The development of positive relations with communities is 
understood to be a component of community cohesion and so 
contribute to community safety. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
There are no specific implications.  Managers and staff will receive 
training in relation to the new policy. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
The proposals are designed to improve the ability of the Council to 
fulfil its equality duty. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
The proposed focus for corporate consultation is designed to be 

Page 60



  

delivered within the current service budget. Specific consultation 
exercises will be designed to be delivered within approved 
budgets. 
 

6.5 Legal 
 
The proposals are designed to ensure the Council meets its legal 
obligations and avoids legal challenge. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
No Implications. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
No implications other than those described in the body of this 
report. 
 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
No specific risks identified. Risks, reputational and other, will be 
considered when designing individual consultation exercises. 

 
 
7. Background and Detail 
 

7.1 To make good decisions the Council needs to understand the views, 
needs and priorities of the local community and, recognising that our 
community is diverse, we need to understand the perspectives of the 
different groups of people within our community. 

 
7.2 To avoid costly legal challenge to its decisions the Council must be able 

to demonstrate that it has consulted local communities appropriately 
and taken account of their feedback. Reported costs to authorities for 
legal challenges where decisions have been made in favour of 
complainants have been in the region of £60,000 per challenge. Some 
authorities which have received multiple challenges have experienced 
costs in excess of £600,000. Dependent on the challenge, and the 
court’s decision, authorities in most cases have had to carry out the 
consultation and decision making process again at additional cost 
where they have lost legal proceedings. 

 
7.3 Failure to fulfil the Council’s equality duty under the Equality Act 2010 is 

also an area of potential challenge and risk for the Council. 
Understanding, consulting and engaging with groups identified in the 
Equality Act as having ‘protected characteristics’ is an essential 
element of the Council’s work to fulfil its equality duty. Consultation and 
engagement will frequently provide the critical intelligence required to 
undertake effective Equality Impact Assessments or equality analysis. 

 

Page 61



  

7.4 The following reflections are offered on the Council’s current approach 
to consultation and engagement: 

 
7.4.1 The Council’s current strategy was agreed in 2009 and requires 

review in light of changing legislation and the increased risk of 
legal challenge.  There is a need for consistency in approach to 
consultation across all areas of the Council, ensuring that the 
importance of consultation is always understood and planned 
well enough in advance. 

 
7.4.2 With the demise of the Comprehensive Area Assessment 

regime, corporate consultation exercises became less well 
focused. 

 
7.4.3 Citizens’ panels: 
 

 A well established, engaged and managed Citizens’ Panel 
has the advantage  of providing a good response to well 
designed consultation exercises, which in turn provides a 
robust evidence base for decisions.  

 
 To work effectively Citizens’ Panels need to be used regularly 

and membership updated constantly (one third annually from 
previous experience). In addition officers observed significant 
‘churn’ with Citizens’ Panel email addresses changing during 
the course of a year. 

 
• There is a significant administrative burden involved in 

posting Citizens’ Panel questionnaires, collating the results 
ready for analysis and keeping the membership of a panel up 
to date.  

 
 Previous experience of the annual budget/service 

prioritisation consultation is that year on year there is very 
little change in community priorities. Questionnaires to the 
Citizens’ Panel were providing no new information and no 
depth in terms of insight into the impact of services, reasons 
for prioritisation or views about quality. 

 
 Previous consultation has provided little insight into the views 

and priorities of groups identified as having ‘protected 
characteristics’ under the Equality Act 2010. 

 
 The High Peak/Staffordshire Moorlands panels were last 

used in 2014. 
 

 In light of the above, it is not proposed to continue with 
Citizens’ Panels. 

 

Page 62



  

7.4.4 The consultation exercise undertaken to support the formulation 
of the Local Development Framework has been rigorous and 
well managed. 

 
7.5 Proposals: 
 

7.5.1 Taking into account the experience of the Council’s current 
Consultation Policy, and considering the changes in the 
Council’s legal duties, it is proposed to adopt a new Corporate 
Consultation Policy (attached at Appendix 1) which aims to: 

 
• Provide the Council’s corporate decision makers with high 

quality timely community insight information. 
 

• Reduce the risk to the Council of legal challenge from claims 
of insufficient or poor quality public consultation or a failure of 
the Council’s equality duty.  

 
7.5.2 The revised Policy proposes that the Council undertakes two 

corporate consultation exercises during the course of a political 
administration: 

 
A ‘Place Survey’ – once every four years: A single piece of work 
to identify community views, priorities and satisfaction (including 
general satisfaction/perception of the Council). This will provide 
data for some of the Council’s Performance Indicators. 

 
A Corporate Priorities Survey – once every four years: A single 
short consultation exercise in the first year of a new 
administration which sets out the proposed Corporate Plan and 
invites views.  

 
7.5.3 The Policy confirms that the Council should continue to 

undertake an annual budget consultation exercise. In order to 
ensure that new insight is gained it is proposed that the annual 
budget consultation exercise, whilst open to all (via Council’s 
website) will in future target and engage ‘protected characteristic’ 
groups. The anticipated benefit is that over time the Council will 
build an evidence base about the views, needs and priorities of 
different groups of people within the overall population. The 
annual budget consultation can also be used to gather data for 
the Council’s Performance indicators. 

 
7.5.4 The Council has a continuing duty to consult local businesses 

with regard to the annual budget. 
 
7.6 Under the proposed Policy, the Democratic and Community Services 

Team will have three main roles in relation to consultation: (1) It will 
take direct responsibility for commissioning/undertaking the Place 
Survey, the Corporate Plan/Priorities consultation and Budget 
Consultation exercises; (2) It will provide support to Heads of Service 

Page 63



  

and Corporate Service Managers to undertake service planning 
consultation; and (3) It will oversee the consultation policy and 
consultation forward planning. 

 
 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

   
 

Page 64



 
HPBC  DRAFT Consultation and Engagement Policy 
 
1. Introduction 

 
The Council is committed to making evidence based decisions that take into account the 
views and experiences of those affected. It seeks to engage with all sectors of the 
community to ensure that everyone has an equal chance to have their say. This Policy 
has been developed to ensure that consultation and engagement undertaken by the 
Council is effective, efficient and consistent, providing the framework for all consultation 
and engagement that takes place throughout the Council. 
 
2. Aim 

 
This Policy aims to support the process of informed and transparent decision making 
and planning, by ensuring the quality and effectiveness of consultation and engagement 
undertaken by or on behalf of the Council (as detailed at Appendix 1). 
 
3. Scope 
 

This policy covers: 
 

• Consultation and some aspects of engagement with the public (see diagram 
below).  

• Key Corporate strategies, plans and policy. 
• All service plans and policies. 
• Strategies, plans and activities undertaken in partnership with other agencies. 
• Other significant actions which may be proposed by the Council. 

 
There are a variety of definitions, models and descriptions of engagement and 
consultation. One well known model describes a spectrum of activity (the ‘ladder 
of participation’) which at one end identifies the provision of information to the 
public/ communities (as passive recipients) and at the other empowered 
community groups (as active and self determined participants). A simplified 
version is illustrated below: 

 
Inform Consult Involve Collaborate Delegate 

 
Information is 
provided to 
stakeholders. 

Stakeholder views 
are sought, 
alternative options 
may be highlighted. 
The final decisions 
are made by the 
Council. 

Stakeholders have an 
active role as 
shapers of the 
options, ideas and 
outcomes, The final 
decision remains with 
the Council.  

Stakeholders have 
direct involvement in 
the decision making 
process and action 
the decision. 

The Council agrees 
the goals and 
transfers resources 
and responsibility for 
addressing the issue 
to stakeholders. 

 
 
 

Consultation 

Engagement 

Page 65



This Policy is concerned with those activities illustrated above as consult, involve 
and collaborate. Therefore all aspects of consultation are within the scope of this 
policy but not all aspects of what is understood as engagement.  

 
4. The Process: There are six steps in the Council’s process. 
 

1.Identify whether to consult 
Consultation/engagement should be considered: 
• When there are new plans, services or policies 
• When there are changes to current plans, services or policies. 
• When there are no changes planned but other external changes 

(public policy, economy, demographics) are impacting on the 
public. 

• Where there is an indication that the public or sections of the 
community are requesting changes to be made. 

• Where there is a statutory duty to consult. 

Responsibility: 
• Heads of Service & Corporate 

Service Managers for their 
services. 

• Democratic & Community 
Services for key corporate 
plans, initiatives and policies. 

2.Establish the objective of the consultation and its scope 
Clarify: 
• What type of feedback we need from the community in order to 

inform the Council’s decisions. 
• Whether there are specific groups or geographic communities 

that should be consulted. 
• What degree of influence will the consultation/ engagement 

results have in the decision – (for example: Are we offering any 
choices, is the result binding on us?) 

• What would be a good public response or involvement rate? 

Responsibility: Heads of Service 
& Corporate Service Managers for 
their services. 
 
 

3.Design the consultation 
• Balancing the available resource for consultation/ engagement, 

the timescales and best practice advice. 
• Consider opportunities to align consultation exercises with other 

services and to work with external partners 
• Complete the consultation plan template. 
• Get approval for the consultation. 

Responsibility: 
• Heads of Service & Corporate 

Service Managers for their 
services supported by: 
Democratic & Community 
Services. 

• AMT/Executive to approve the 
consultation. 

4.Deliver the activity & record the inputs 
• Undertake the planned activity 
• Monitor the implementation and adapt the plan if necessary 
• Ensure a record is kept of responses, views etc 

Responsibility: Service Mangers 
 

5.Report the results  
• Consultation results should be summarised in reports and a full 

analysis available. 
• Conclusions drawn from consultation results and consequential 

proposals will be clear and documented. 
• Results will be reported on the website and otherwise (as 

planned/template) be fed back to participants 

Responsibility: Heads of Service 
& Corporate Service Managers for 
their services 
  
 

6.Review/Evaluate 
• Undertake a review of the consultation and engagement activity, 

identifying lessons for the future (template provided by the 
Communities & Culture Team). 

Responsibility: Heads of Service 
& Corporate Service Managers for 
their services supported by the 
Democratic & Community 
Service. 

Page 66



 
 

5. Principles 
 

To ensure that our consultation and engagement reflects best practice and supports 
a process of informed and transparent decision-making and planning, the following 
principles will underpin the development of consultation and engagement projects 
and exercises. Approving officers must be satisfied that each of these principles has 
been properly considered before approval to proceed with a consultation exercise is 
granted (the principles are set out in more detail in Appendix 2). 

 
Consultation and engagement should be 

• Necessary; 
• Robust and purposeful; 
• Inclusive; 
• Influential and used; 
• Shared; 
• Joined-up, co-ordinated and efficient; 
• Building better relationships with local communities and stakeholders; 
• Empowering local communities to have a say about their lives. 

 
6. Roles and Responsibilities 

 
Heads of Service & Corporate Service Managers are responsible for  

 
• Ensuring that their teams are aware of, and apply, the process outlined in this 

Policy.  
• Identifying when there is a need or requirement to consult with respect to their 

service delivery, plans, policies or processes. 
• Informing the Democratic & Community Services Manager/Corporate 

Consultation Officer at the earliest opportunity about the potential need to 
consult/engage. 

• Ensuring that stakeholders are consulted, and have specific regard to the 
protected characteristics highlighted in the Equality Duty, completing a relevant 
Equality Impact Assessment. 

• Ensuring that consultation evidence is clearly documented and available. 
 

The Democratic & Community Services Team is responsible for: 
 

• Providing support and advice to managers to apply the Policy, and for advising 
on the most appropriate consultation methodologies. 

• Providing quality assurance in relation to planned consultation and engagement 
activity.  

• Providing community profiling information/data to help managers determine who 
to target for consultation and/or engagement. 

Page 67



• Organising consultation on corporate policy/plans and corporate performance 
and satisfaction with the Council. 

• Maintaining a forward plan for consultation and engagement and assisting with 
the coordination of consultation activity across service areas and with partner 
agencies. 
 

Councillors 
 

Councillors have their own regular contact with the communities they represent and 
will form views about community priorities, needs and views as a result of this 
contact. It is important that councillors also take into account the evidence from 
formal consultation and engagement activity and that the Council can evidence that 
due consideration has been given to consultation results in the Council’s decisions. 

 
Councillors play an important role in encouraging community participation and in 
helping to ensure that community consultation is well targeted and consultation 
methods are appropriate. 

 
Councillors will be informed about the consultation and engagement plans for the 
Borough as a whole and for their ward, in particular, prior to the start of the activities. 

 
7. Planning & Approval 
 

All consultation and engagement exercises including supporting evidence will be 
quality reviewed and approved in advance of implementation prior to any publicity.  

 
Managers will consider the following general rules when identifying the appropriate 
level of approval following support and input from the Consultation Officer: 

 
• consultation on service specific issues will usually be approved by the Director 

or Head of Service;  
• consultation regarding more than one service or department will require 

approval from the Alliance Management Team; 
• consultation relating to, or affecting, corporate policy should be approved by 

the Executive Director and/or the Alliance Management Team; 
• the Alliance Management Team may, at its discretion, refer to Committee any 

proposed consultation that is considered to be of a potentially sensitive nature.  
 

All consultation exercises should have an officer identified and designated as the key 
contact. It is the responsibility of the key contact to ensure that the consultation is 
included on the Consultation Forward Plan and developed in line with the Policy.  The 
Transformation Service should also be contacted to ensure inclusion as appropriate in 
communications planning. 
 
The Alliance Management Team will consider the results of consultation exercises and 
the evaluation reports. 

Page 68



 
 

APPENDIX 1 - The Aims, Objectives and expected Benefits to the Council of 
Consultation (Detail) 

 
 

1. This Policy aims to support the process of informed and transparent decision making 
and planning, by ensuring the quality and effectiveness of consultation and 
engagement undertaken by or on behalf of the Council. 

 
2. The objectives of this Consultation and Engagement Policy are to: 

 
• ensure there is a clear understanding of, and commitment to, community 

consultation and engagement throughout the staff and members of the 
Council in order to support service delivery, community planning and 
improved performance. 

 
• maintain an open dialogue with stakeholders, whilst giving due consideration 

to all sections of the community, including hard to reach groups and ensuring 
consultation gives regard to the Equalities Duty. 

 
• ensure the results of community consultation and engagement are fed into 

the decision making processes of the Council and used to inform decisions, 
policy development and service delivery, particularly with the increasing 
importance of understanding and addressing the different needs of our 
diverse communities.  

 
• openly and accurately provide results and, where applicable, actions of all 

community consultation and engagement ensuring that they are accessible 
and reported to consultees, members, the public and other stakeholders. 

 
3. Benefits of Consultation 

 
The Council recognises that there are clear and significant benefits to engaging with 
and consulting service users and non-service users. Consultation and engagement 
helps to ensure that services are user-focused. Effective consultation and 
engagement can deliver a range of benefits, including helping to:  

 
• plan, prioritise and deliver improved services, to meet user requirements and 

make the best use of increasingly limited resources;  
 

• set performance standards relevant to users' needs (and monitor them); 
 

• develop and enhance working partnerships with users and groups within the 
community, so they can support and challenge for improved services; 

 

Page 69



• ensure where possible negative impacts are highlighted effectively and 
appropriate actions to mitigate the impact can be taken at an early stage; 

 
• identify issues at an early stage to enable the appropriate actions to be taken;  

 
• highlights commitment to transparent and accountable decision-making, and 

putting services and communities first.  
 
 
 
  

Page 70



APPENDIX 2 - Principles for Effective Consultation and Engagement 
 
The Council will adopt the following principles in relation to consultation and 
engagement.  It is important to consider these principles before planning any 
consultation or engagement activity. 

 
To ensure that our consultation and engagement reflects best practice and supports a 
process of informed and transparent decision-making and planning, the following 
principles will form a framework for the development of consultation projects and 
exercises. Approving officers must be satisfied that each of these principles has been 
properly considered before approval to proceed with a consultation exercise is granted.  

 
Consultation and engagement should be: 
 
• Necessary  

 
We will not waste resources, time or goodwill by consulting our local communities 
too much, on something that has already been covered before or by someone else 
or, importantly, when the decision has already been taken. Before any new 
consultation begins, a thorough search will be made to find out whether relevant 
information has already been gathered from the public and if this is relevant. We will 
avoid unnecessary repetition and duplication. In particular, we will use the 
Consultation Forward Plan, described below, to identify previous research and 
opportunities to join-up or merge consultation exercises, where possible. 

 
• Robust and purposeful 

 
Consultation and engagement should be carried out to the highest possible standard 
and according to best practice guidelines. We will be clear about the purpose and 
scope of each consultation exercise that we undertake. 

 
Any consultation will contain a clear statement describing why it is being carried out 
and how the results will be used. It will be clear to consultees what may be 
influenced by responding to the consultation – and what cannot. 

 
We will undertake specific and focused consultation to an appropriate agreed 
timescale, which allows the results to be used for their intended purpose. For more 
information on standards for consultation or best practice contact the Communities 
Team. 

 
• Inclusive methodology  

 
We will consult using a variety of methods to ensure that all groups can participate 
fully. We will further encourage participation by paying attention to timings and 
locations of events, the provision of information in different formats, access 
requirements etc. 

Page 71



 
Methods chosen should be appropriate to the purpose, reflecting the strengths and 
weaknesses of each method, and be managed with a clear understanding of the 
particular skills, knowledge and resources that consultation requires. The 
Communities Team will help plan and assist with methodology selection.  

 
We will seek informed public opinion rather than instant reaction or decision 
confirmations. Whenever possible, the Council’s communication mechanisms will be 
used alongside consultation to inform and stimulate public interest, and provide clear 
background information on the issue being discussed. This information will be 
presented in plain language and in formats that meet the needs of the consultees. 

 
Some hard to reach groups are less likely to respond to traditional methods of 
consultation, so additional efforts are needed to help these people to participate. 
Sometimes we may require a completely different method of consultation and 
engagement that runs alongside the main methodology. This can include face-to-
face engagement in small groups, or through an existing group, to enable people 
with particular needs to express their views.  
 

• Influential and used  
 
Consultation and engagement cannot be a stand-alone piece of work – the findings 
must be put to use. Every consultation or engagement exercise needs an action plan 
or timetable and those actions should be incorporated into service delivery or project 
plans. We will plan and prepare the consultation activity allowing for adequate 
publicity and make the consultation available giving consultees adequate time to 
prepare and submit their response. It is recognised that the length of time will vary 
depending on the time of year and the level of response that is being sought, 
however, sufficient time will be allowed for submission of responses. Sufficient time 
will also be allowed for the results of consultation to be collated, analysed and 
considered following the closure of the consultation, to ensure that the results of 
consultation feed directly into the decision making process. 

 
• Shared 

 
Our communities are not specific to us and we need to share the information with 
our stakeholders – that includes service users, possibly non-users, other services 
and partners. Every consultation and engagement exercise needs to include a 
communications plan to publicise the consultation, as well as the results and 
outcomes.  Support for this is available from the Communities Team. 

 
Accessible feedback should be provided to consultees, both on the results of 
consultation and on how they have been used, in order to encourage greater public 
participation in the future. 

Page 72



In some cases the results of consultation will be outweighed by other evidence or 
considerations; in such cases a clear and honest explanation of the decisive factors 
should be included in the feedback. 

 
• Joined-up, co-ordinated (where possible) and efficient 

 
There are many Council services and local organisations that may want to get local 
communities involved in decision-making but there is a danger of ‘consultation 
fatigue’ developing. It makes sense for local organisations to pool resources, share 
ideas and information, and avoid duplication by undertaking consultation and 
engagement jointly where possible.  Existing links with our communities and 
stakeholders should be used. 
 

• Building better relationships with local communities and stakeholders  
 
All contact with us should be a positive experience for our customers. Building trust 
with local communities is important. We want our services to be accessible and of 
the highest quality. Communities and stakeholders involved in consultation and 
engagement should feel it is a positive experience and that they are contributing 
towards improvements to services in their local area. Consultation and engagement 
should be an enjoyable experience. 
 

• Empowering local communities to have a say about their lives  
 
Local communities are better placed to have their say about aspects that affect their 
lives if they have the skills and knowledge about how decisions are made and how 
to influence service delivery. The Council works closely with the community and 
voluntary sector to increase civic participation and connect people to local services. 
Particular consultation and engagement projects could provide opportunities to train 
local people in event planning, meeting skills and how to be an effective 
representative. More generally, involvement in consultation and engagement gives 
local people a better understanding of how decisions are made and to get involved 
in making a difference to their local community.  

  

Page 73



APPENDIX 3 - Consultation and Engagement Forward Plan 
 

The Consultation and Engagement Forward Plan is a resource to coordinate and share 
information within the Council.  In addition, the system allows information on planned, 
current and completed consultation to be shared with partners where appropriate. 

 
All consultation and engagement exercises, regardless of scope or methodology, should 
be included by passing the required information to the Democratic & Community 
Service. The information required is set out below. This requirement for this information 
is intended to ensure that the principles outlined above are considered in the planning 
and implementation of all consultation and engagement activities. 

 
Ongoing consultation and engagement exercises, for example regular consultation with 
service user or community groups or forums, must also be included so that officers and 
elected members can be alerted to the activity. In some cases this will mean including 
each meeting of a group or forum as a unique consultation event, while in other cases it 
will be sufficient to make one entry for an ongoing series of meetings. Service managers 
should notify the Communities Team of such activities to ensure there is a record of the 
activities held centrally.  

 
The inclusion of statutory consultations, where appropriate, must also be included on 
the Forward Plan. 

 
 
Information required for consultation and engagement exercise 

 
The following information will be required: 

 
Need and Purpose: What you intend to consult about and describe how the results you 
obtain will inform decision-making and service delivery.  

 
Target Group: Identify the people you are seeking to consult with (ensure you have 
considered those groups considered hard to reach).  

 
Method(s): Describe the consultation methods you intend to use.  

 
Timescale: Give an outline of the timetable you expect to follow.  

 
Resources: What financial, staff and other resources are required.  

 
Analysis and Reporting: How the responses will be analysed and where will it be 
reported.  

 
Feedback: How consultees will receive feedback, if appropriate, including a summary of 
responses and actions or outcomes arising.  
 

Page 74



  

 
          
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

Report to Corporate Select Committee 
 
 

20 March 2017 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix 1: Detailed explanation of methodology and sources of evidence. 
 
 
1.     Reason for the Report: To prepare a consistent approach to quantifying the 

economic benefits of development (housing, employment and visitor economy) 
in order to comply with s155 of Housing and Planning Act 2016 and provide 
relevant information towards consideration of ‘planning balance’ for 
determination of planning applications. The report outlines a range of 
economic assumptions and establishes a method for calculating the impact of 
each of them to inform the business cases for key corporate priorities and to 
estimate the impact of investing Council’s resources on the short, medium and 
long term financial plans. 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the approach to quantifying economic impact as outlined in this 
report be noted. 
 

2.2 That the Committee recommend that the Executive approve the 
approach as the Council’s preferred method for quantifying economic 
growth.  

 
3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 This report sets out a consistent methodology for capturing and 
 quantifying the economic impact of development within High  Peak.  
 

TITLE:   Quantifying the economic impact   
  of growth 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR/ Cllr. Tony Kemp 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER:   
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  Pranali Parikh 
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  All 

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



  

3.2 Key objectives to propose a consistent approach to quantify economic 
impact are: 
• To support compliance with s155 of Housing and Planning Act 

2016; 
• To quantify the economic impact and resultant community benefits 

of developments to inform the ‘planning balance’ element for 
determination of planning applications; 

• To monitor the progress of delivery of the Local Plan and the 
Growth Strategy and measure the economic impact of the 
proposed developments; 

• To have a good understanding of the outcomes deriving from new 
developments and inform the priority and budget setting process 
for the Council; 

• To inform the Council’s business case analysis and ensure that it 
complies with the Government’s Green Book Appraisal approach; 

• To help model and forecast financial benefits of priority projects in 
the Transformation programme and guide the allocation of 
resources. 

 
3.3 This report explains the use of the multiplier system for measuring the 

impact of residential, commercial and tourism related development 
within the borough.  

 
3.4 The report also identifies the risks associated by lack of development 

and the wider impact of a ‘reverse multiplier’ (that is the impact of 
disinvestment) on our towns and communities. 

 
3.5 This proposed approach is intended to inform the decision making 

process and to be used only as a guidance. The proposed methodology 
may be amended after the government release the detailed guidance 
for s155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016. The numbers 
generated using the proposed methodology are subject to the 
assumptions made at the time of calculations and available information 
in the public domain. Each development may vary depending upon the 
localised policies, site conditions and the socio-economic impact. The 
intention of this exercise is to provide a consistent base with which to 
compare projects and developments. 
 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The report identifies a consistent approach to quantifying the economic 
impact of growth and will therefore enable councillors and officers to 
make better informed and consistent decisions in relation to budget 
commitment and planning. This will enable the council to meet aim 2 
and aim 3 of Corporate Plan 2015-19 
• Aim 2: Meet Financial Challenges & Provide Value for Money 
• Aim 3- To help create a strong economy by supporting further 

regeneration of towns and villages  
 
5.       Options and Analysis 

Page 76



  

 
5.1 Do Nothing 

 Under this option, the Council would not have a consistent approach to 
quantifying the economic impact of growth. This would mean that 
• The Council would not necessarily be complying with s155 of 

Housing and Planning Act 2016 which places a legal obligation on 
authorities to include details of the financial benefits information 
when making recommendations for planning applications.  

• There is a risk that without a consistent approach to quantifying 
the economic impact, the Council could be exposed to different 
methods used by various consultants and open to challenge from 
developers and the potential for judicial review of decisions.  

• Councillors will not have access to reliable, consistent and 
comparable information on the potential impact of development 
projects when making decisions.  
 

Not recommended 
 
5.2 Approve and adopt the proposed approach and methodology for 

calculating economic impact for housing, business and tourism-linked 
development 
• Under this option the Council would have a consistent approach to 

assessing the economic impact of housing, industrial, and 
commercial investment. 
 

Recommended 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
Adoption of consistent approach will help identify income to the council 
from growth as well as quantify wider economic impact for district. Key 
financial assumptions are made in discussion with the finance team 
and will be updated in the light of new information such as the 
government’s proposed business rate retention policy.  
 

6.5 Legal 
There is no known implementation date for  s155 of Housing and 
Planning Act 2016 and when it does come into force it will be subject to 
detailed guidance that may require a re-evalutation of the approach set 
out in this report.  

Page 77



  

 
6.6 Sustainability 

The National Planning Policy Framework makes clear that the purpose 
of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of 
sustainable development. There are three dimensions to sustainable 
development - economic, social and environmental – and the NPPF 
highlights that these roles should not be undertaken in isolation. 
 
Sustainability Appraisal to assess (and if required mitigate) the 
environmental impact of the High Peak Local Plan was produced at 
each stage of the process. 
 
In addition to Sustainability Appraisal, key evidence used to support 
policies in the Local Plan is the assessment of objectively assessed 
housing and employment needs which takes into account the social, 
cultural and political aspects along with the economic and 
environmental ones. 
 
This report focuses on the economic impact of development to inform 
this key element of ‘planning balance’. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
This report is prepared in consultation with relevant teams within the 
Council such as, Planning Policy, Economic Development, 
Development Management, Finance, Visitor Services and Legal. 
Following the approval of Corporate Select Committee, it will be 
presented to the Executive for approval. 
 

6.8 
 
 
 

 Risk Assessment 
 Risk of challenge to approach by those opposed to an application 

based on perceived focus on economic issues. 
Mitigation 
• This report does not alter or give any additional priority to 

economic factors, but seeks only to give a consistent 
methodology to capturing the economic impact of a 
development. Planning officers are required to report on all 
aspects of development as part of their report. 

• Complies with guidance issued around s155 
• Council has used widely available robust data in the public 

domain and the methodology is used in other public sector 
organisations. 

 

7.         Background and Detail 

7.1   Background 

7.1.1  This report sets out a methodology for quantifying the economic impact of 
growth in High Peak.  

Page 78



  

7.1.2  The purpose for this report is to objectively assess the economic impact of 
any development within the borough by using standard multipliers to inform 
councillors and officers about the potential impact of the development on the 
local economy. 

 
7.2 Planning Context 
 
7.2.1 Since 2012 the National Planning Policy Framework NPPF, has carried a 

presumption in favour of sustainable development and has made clear 
that  there are three dimensions to sustainable development - economic, 
social and environmental – and the NPPF highlights that these roles should 
not be undertaken in isolation. Consequently, planning reports already 
contain a Section entitled “Planning Balance” where the implications for each 
of the three dimensions are considered and benefits are weighed against 
disbenefits. 

 
7.2.2 The ‘Planning Balance’ is the process of ‘weighing up’ the key relevant 

factors- environmental, social and economical, in determination of a planning 
application. As a planning authority, the Council is obliged to exercise its 
judgement and consider many (sometimes) conflicting issues to decide 
whether planning permission should be granted. These factors must be 
properly considered otherwise the decision of whether or not to grant 
permission may be unlawful. 

 
7.2.3 As part of this consideration, economic benefits are already taken into 

account in general terms, but the Council does not have an adopted 
methodology by which such benefits can be quantified, in contrast to the 
environmental strand of sustainable development, which is objectively 
assessed using standard tools such as Transport Impact Assessments of 
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessments.  

 
7.2.4 S155 of Housing and Planning Act 2016 now places a legal obligation on 

authorities to include and consider financial benefits information when 
making recommendations for planning applications “whether or not material 
to the application”. Under clause 75ZA, the Act requires 

      “A local planning authority in England must make arrangements to ensure 
that the required financial benefits information is included in each report 
which is made by an officer or agent of the authority”  

7.2.5 Clause 75ZA states that in relation to each listed financial benefit a statement 
explaining the extent to which it is material to the application must be 
provided. Some benefits secured through Section 106, such as education 
contributions, only mitigate the impact of the new development and therefore 
would carry neutral weight in the overall assessment of the ‘planning  
balance’. Others, such as the provision of a convenience store as part of a 
new development, which would be of benefit to the whole community, and 
which would create new jobs and income for a new local business, would 
carry a positive weight. 

7.2.6 It is therefore necessary to ensure that a more detailed and site specific 
analysis is provided within reports relating to any planning decision.  

 

Page 79



  

7.2.7   In order to meet this obligation, it is important for the Council to adopt a 
consistent methodology for capturing and measuring economic outcomes 
that is robust and acceptable by all. Without that, the Council could be 
exposed to different methods used by various consultants  Failure to properly 
consider all 3 aspects of sustainable development when taking planning 
decisions could lead to potential challenges in the form of Appeals or Judicial 
Review.  

 

7.3  Methodology and reliability of data 

7.3.1 Economists have been studying the circular flow of money arising from 
investment and withdrawal of investment for over 120 years, and in the 
1930s the concept of a multiplier effect was established. Since 2010, 
significant research has been undertaken by international academics to 
understand and evaluate the impact of multipliers on a local area and the 
effect that a specific development investment would have in its local 
environment. This report uses this established methodology to create a 
formula for calculating the impact of development in the context of High 
Peak.  

7.3.2 The Council has used the Oxford Economics employment forecasts to inform 
the Adopted local plan. This data was supplemented by a Quantitative Retail 
Study in 2013 to understand shopping spending patterns across the main 
towns. 

 This report draws on reliable and credible sources of evidence, such as 
Office for National Statistics (ONS), Scarborough Tourism Economic Activity 
Monitor (STEAM) and Visit England data related to tourism spend.  

 Further background is attached within the Annexe 1 which evidences the 
detail. 

 

7.4  Explaining economic benefit to the area and the multiplier effect 

7.4.1  Every time there is investment (or disinvestment) into an economy – such as 
new housing or business investment in equipment and premises - there is an 
impact on the local economy in terms of jobs and purchasing of supplies and 
services. The multiplier effect refers to the additional economic benefits 
resulting from this initial investment.  

7.4.2  The initial investment starts a circular flow of money into the wider economy 
which is known as the multiplier effect or circular flow concept. This is 
because an injection of extra investment leads to spending, which creates 
increased income for other businesses.  At a local level, this can be 
calculated as a formula for income retained in the area for each new home or 
for each square metre of new business floor-space.    

 Multipliers are usually sub dived into three tiers.  

• Tier 1 includes – outcomes from the direct investment  

Page 80

http://www.economicsonline.co.uk/Managing_the_economy/Aggregate_demand.html
http://www.economicsonline.co.uk/Managing_the_economy/Aggregate_demand.html
http://www.economicsonline.co.uk/Managing_the_economy/Aggregate_demand.html


  

 For example: new jobs created in construction; new jobs in expanding 
businesses; and the direct expenditure related to the construction;  

• Tier 2  - includes all of the above but also direct new or safeguarded 
employment in the supply chain generated by the expenditure arising 
specifically from this contract.  

 For example: new and safeguarded jobs at firms that manufacture 
products used by the construction industry; supply machinery or other 
equipment which will be housed in the new business premises. 

• Tier 3 includes all of the above but also the jobs and spend generated 
in the local area by spend of tier 1 and tier 2 employees, subcontractors 
and in the case of tourism businesses, by visitors.  

 For example: Money spent in shops and on other services by new 
householders, by construction/permanent employees and by visitors – 
which in turn supports and creates additional jobs.  

 

 
 
 
7.4.3  It is proposed that the Council adopts a methodology for calculating the 

impact of residential, commercial and tourism development, reflecting the full 
impact of development across all three tiers, where these can be realistically 
and reliably be quantified. This will estimate the financial income to the 
Council as well as total community benefits in both the first year and as a 
total for first five years following completion.  

 
7.4.4 It is to be noted that while each new home and business premise generates 

income to the council in the form of council tax, business rates and the New 
Homes Bonus (in addition to other government tax revenues such as stamp 
duty, income tax, value-added tax), there is also an increase in operational 

Page 81



  

costs in form of waste collection and other related operational and 
infrastructural costs incurred to the Council due to any additional 
development.  

 
7.5 Assumptions for Housing Development: 
 
7.5.1 Council Tax: The Council retains 12.18% of Council tax generated by each 

new dwelling. Considering the average house in High Peak is classified in 
Council Tax Band D, this equates to £195.98 per dwelling per year. ( For full 
explanation of calculation see Annex 1, paragraph 1) 
 

7.5.2 New Homes Bonus: For homes developed over and above the 0.4% of 
dwelling stock in band D equivalents (for High Peak: 165 units or 145 band D 
equivalents), the Council could receive approximately £1200 per unit per year 
for four years or £4800 per unit over four years. (for full details please see 
Annex 1 paragraph 3) 

 
7.5.3 Planning application fees: The Council receives an average £385 per 

dwelling for major planning applications.  ( For full explanation of calculation 
see Annex 1, paragraph 2) 

 
7.5.4 S106 contributions for community benefits: The council receives income from 

s106 payments to mitigate against impact of development. However a 
percentage of this money is secured for transport, education and other 
community facilities and is shared by the County or Parish Councils.  Each 
development will need to be assessed on case by case basis.  
 
S106 income for Council: As an average the open space contribution for 
open space could potentially be £430 per home. 
(For full explanation of calculation see Annex 1, paragraph 4) 
 

7.5.5 Investment in the local area 
Each new home in the High Peak costs on average £90,476 generating 
property investment in the local area. (For full explanation of calculation see 
Annex 1, paragraph 5) 

 
7.5.6 Additional spend in the area 
 The new householders occupying each new house will spend some of their 

income locally through shopping and use of local services such as local 
builders. This includes both an initial amount ‘to make their house feel like 
their home’ and on-going amount as part of their disposable income. 
• Initial one off spend: Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners, ‘The Economic & 

Social Benefits of Home Building in Scotland’ (2015) calculated this as 
a minimum £5000 per home 

• Annual spend: The GVA Quantitative Retail Study (update) 2013 
identified that 33.33% of all household expenditure is spent at district 
level or below. This equates to £176.97 per week or £9,202.44 per year. 

 (For full explanation of calculation see Annex 1, paragraph 6-7) 
 
7.5.7 New Jobs 

Page 82



  

• Direct jobs (Construction and supply chain): Nathaniel Lichfield & 
Partners report ‘The Economic footprint of UK housebuilding’ (March 
2015) identified that each new house generates 4.3 jobs within 
construction or the associated supply chain of which 25 per cent or 1.07 
jobs are likely to be locally based.  

• Indirect jobs (shops and services): The local spend generated by new 
households will also support jobs in shops and services. Deloltte, in 
partnership with Oxford Economics, have calculated that this equates to 
an additional local job for every seven new homes (or 0.14 per dwelling) 
in addition to those generated in construction and supply chain. 
(For full explanation of calculation see Annex 1, paragraph 8-9) 

 
7.5.8 Affordable homes 

The affordable housing policy in the Local Plan proposes that all private 
sector housing developments with over 5 properties generate 0.30 of an 
affordable home on developments over 25 dwellings and a lower amount of 
0.20 for developments of 6-25 dwellings. (For full explanation of calculation 
see Annex 1, paragraph 10) 

 
7.6  Assumptions for Business/Employment use Development excluding 

tourism businesses 
 
7.6.1  Business Rates 
 Business Rates are calculated using a property’s ‘rateable value’, which is its 

open market rental value on 1 April 2015 (for Business Rates from 1 April 
2017 onwards) based on an estimate by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA). 
Each development will need to be assessed on its own merit and as a proxy, 
a similar property’s rateable value could be used to estimate business rate 
income to the Council for a specific development. (For full explanation of 
calculation see Annex 1, paragraph 11) 

 
7.6.2 Planning application fees: The Council receives a planning application fee for 

commercial development. This rate is currently £385 for each 75sqm of floor 
area or part thereof up to 3,750sqm & £19.049 plus £115 for each additional 
75 sqm in excess of 3750 up to a maximum of £250,000. The fees for 
change of use is £385 per application. 

 
7.6.3 S106: Community benefits: The council may receive an income from s106 

payments to mitigate against the impact of development, however a 
percentage of this money is secured for highway improvements and is paid to 
Derbyshire County Council. For this reason these will be considered on a 
case by case basis and will be included if applicable.  
(For full explanation of calculation see Annex 1, paragraph 4)  

 
7.6.4 Investment in the local area 

• Development cost: The level of private sector business investment will 
depend on individual scheme evidence supplied to council officers. 

• It should be noted that although not considered in this report, business 
investment multipliers can vary depending upon the sector and size of 
the business; smaller firms having a greater propensity to re-spend in 
the local economy.  

Page 83



  

• Development can also contribute to business growth. Capital 
investment can raise the productivity of businesses and create new job 
opportunities 

 (For full explanation see Annex 1, paragraph 12) 
 
7.6.5  Additional spend in the area 

Spend close to employment: National research on re-spend of employees 
has identified that between 4.5 per cent and 9 per cent of an employees 
overall weekly household spend is spent close to their place of employment. 
In High Peak this would equate to £1,394 per annum. 
 
Re-spend in the local area:  
People who live and work locally, spend approximately 40% of their 
disposable income in the local area compared to average households 
(33.33%). This means that business investment which attracts a proportion of 
in-migration of new working age residents through re-location to the area, 
especially higher income earners, will have a greater positive impact on the 
local economy, as long as there is sufficient supply in the housing market. In 
High Peak, this would equate to £11,045 per relocating/new employee per 
annum. 

 (For full explanation see Annex 1, paragraph 13) 
 
7.6.6  Savings for other public services:  

The Home Office and Department of Health have undertaken research to 
calculate the financial benefit of moving someone from benefits to 
employment and the impact that this has in terms of savings on the public 
purse. These savings are achieved because working adults use less public 
services than non-working age adults, and when they do, often use more 
cost effective means of communication such as using online payment and 
contact enquiry systems. In High Peak, this equates to a £6855-£12,084 per 
new employee who were previously in receipt of benefits. 

 (For full explanation see Annex 1, paragraph 14) 
 
7.6.7  It is to be assumed that the Council would also theoretically receive channel 

shift savings generated by movement of individuals from benefits to work 
however at this point these are not included as any savings are seen as 
marginal.  

 
7.6.8  New Jobs 

Business development could generate a range of job opportunities. Actuals 
will need to be supplied by developer or for comparison estimate. Nathanial 
Litchfield Partnership have estimated the following job numbers based on 
national ratios utilising the ODPM Guidance Note on Employment Land 
Reviews calculations 2015. 
 
Direct jobs:  

• B1 (Office)1 job per 14m2  
• B1 (all) 1 job per 20m2  
• B2 (manufacturing) 1 job per 35m2 
• B8(Distribution) 1 job per 50m2 

 

Page 84



  

Business development will also generate a range of additional job 
opportunities including temporary jobs in the construction phase and jobs 
generated through re-spend of new employees. The developer will need to 
supply estimates of these based on the individual development 

 (For full explanation see Annex 1, paragraph 15) 
 

 
7.7 Assumptions for tourism related development 

 
7.7.1 Business investment by tourism businesses has an economic multiplier effect 

similar to other businesses, but also has a wider impact because customers 
will also spend money in the local economy, which will also increase the 
circular flow of money within the community. Capital investment in tourism 
businesses will be reviewed using the assumptions for Business/Employment 
development outlined above. The calculations below will consider the 
additional impact of visitor expenditure  

 
7.7.2 Developments which will increase the propensity of visitors to stay overnight, 

by providing new larger scale attractions, festivals, mult-day events as well 
as new or improved accommodation should be considered to increase 
number of staying visitors. 
• Spend per day of a day visitor: Steam data for 2015 has identified that 

a day visitor to High Peak spent on average £35.16 per day.  
• Spend per visit of a staying visitor: In contrast, a staying visitor spent 

£213.23 per visit (or £66.63 per day based on an average 3.2 days). 
• Assuming there is no overall increase in visitor numbers, the 

conversion of a day visitor to a staying visitor will have an average 
boost to the local economy of £178.07 per visitor  

(Full details, Annex 1, paragraph 16) 
 
7.8.   The economic impact of no development 

 
7.8.1 As well as their being a well recognised positive economic impact of 

development, there is also a recognised downward or 'reverse' cycle 
whereby the lack of new direct investment in an area’s economy leads to a 
negative impact on the social and economic health of the area and increased 
expenditure for public sector. (for further details, please see Annex 1, 
paragraph 17) 

 
 

Page 85



  

 
 
 
7.8.2 This reverse multiplier is particularly evidenced in communities which have 

not seen investment in housing or business growth as over time the 
increased withdrawal of spending by householders and businesses leads to 
an increasing lack of monetary flow which has a significant detrimental 
impact on the High Street (both in terms of high street occupancy and 
quality of shops) but also on wider support services, such as health and 
leisure provision, which tends to cluster close to retail centres.  Further 
details available Annex 1, Paragraph 17 

 
 At a local level, we are seeing rising levels of town centre retail vacancy and 

increasing rates of charity premises in Buxton and New Mills where there 
has been less housing and business development over the last few years in 
comparison to Glossop, Hadfield, Whaley Bridge and Chapel-en-Le-Frith.  

 
7.8.3 Lack of employment growth means that the re-spend of these potential 

employees has been lost to the area. This can have a significant long term 
detrimental impact on the High Street, as an aging and commuter based 
population will result in less spend and a decline in the high street in terms 
of occupancy and quality. For an example, a rise in charity and discount 
stores as well as empty premises. 

 
7.8.4 Lack of employment means increase in recipients of job seeker allowance 

and other benefits and an increased demand for affordable or social rented 
homes, increased need for public sector support and therefore increased 
public sector expenditure. 

 
7.8.5 There is also clear evidence that a decreasing monetary flow, ageing 

population and decline of the high street, renders a place unattractive for 

Page 86



  

visitors, residents and investors, resulting in increased pressure on the 
public purse to commit expenditure. For example, a need to offer grant aid 
to invest in shop front and public realm schemes; subsidy of transport 
services; and delivery of services to unemployed/low income households. 

 
7.8.6 It should also be noted that if the principal economy of a locale is linked to 

supporting an aging population (e.g. care and health services, public sector 
services, low value trades) then these employees are unlikely to be able to 
afford to buy homes – and this increases pressure to provide more 
affordable homes. 

 
 
 

Dai Larner 
Executive Director 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

   
 
  

Page 87



  

Annex 1: Explanation of calculations/Evidence base 
 
Assumptions for Housing Development: 
 
1 Council Tax 
 

A new home generates £1,609.40 council tax for the area based on average 
band D rate for 2016/17. The proportion retained by HPBC is 12.18% which 
equates to £195.98 per new home. The remaining income generated is used for 
Derbyshire County Council, Police, and Fire and Rescue services.  This rate will 
be utilised as the standard amount in line with other service teams, unless there 
is an identified band identified within the proposed development. 
 

Evidence: Finance team (internal) 
 
2 Planning Application Fees 
 

• All outline applications - £385 per 0.1ha for sites up to 2.5ha. & £9,527 + £155 
for each 0.1ha for sites in excess of 2.5ha up to a max of £125,000. 

• Full applications - £385 per dwelling up to 50 dwellings & £19.049 plus £115 
per dwelling for site of over 50 dwellings to  a maximum of £250,000 

• Changes of use £385 
 

Evidence: Planning portal fee calculator 
https://1app.planningportal.co.uk/FeeCalculator/Standalone 
 
3. New Homes Bonus 

 
New Homes Bonus is a central government funded scheme to financially reward 
councils that deliver new homes. Payment has previously been made over six 
years following completion of the dwelling, but from 2017/18 this will reduce to 
five years, and will reduce to four years in 2018/19 onwards. From 2017 New 
Homes Bonus will be calculated as follows: 
 

• Increase in the dwelling stock in the council tax base, by band = dwelling stock 
this year minus dwelling stock last year, both net of demolitions and long term 
empty property (for High Peak is 41,371) 

• Increase in band D equivalent dwellings = increase in stock by band, weighted by 
band D equivalence, with a lower weight given to bands A-C, and a higher weight 
given to bands E-H 

• Baseline = 0.4% of dwelling stock (for High Peak: 165 units or 145 band D 
equivalents) 

• Units for reward = Growth in band D equivalent dwellings minus units under 
baseline 

• Payment for band D equivalents = Units for reward multiplied by average band D 
council tax payment 

• Affordable homes payment = Number of affordable homes added over the period 
multiplied by affordable homes premium (£350). 

• Annual payment = payment for band D equivalents plus affordable homes 
payment 

Page 88

https://1app.planningportal.co.uk/FeeCalculator/Standalone


  

• As an example, 100 additional homes (over baseline), High Peak could receive 
approx. £121,560pa for four years, with the total payment being £486,242   

 
Derbyshire County Council will retain 20% of the NHB, which for 100 homes over 
baseline could equate to £30,390 per year, £121,500 over four years. 

 
Evidence: the New Homes Bonus Calculator developed by DCLG  
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/new-homes-bonus-calculator-2017-to-
2018 
 
4. S106 payments for Housing developments: 

 
Payments by developers are made in respect of infrastructure investment 
required to accommodate new development. This can include contributions 
towards school places and new classrooms; environmental mitigation; play 
provision, parks and leisure facilities as well as highways and green 
infrastructure. The exact nature of the s106 payment and who it is paid to, will 
depend on the nature of the development and its location. As an example, the 
total contribution secured by High Peak Borough Council is £787,680.95 which 
covers planning permission for 894 new homes. This gives an average of 
approximately £881 per dwelling where a s106 agreement was necessary to 
mitigate the effects of development. However, some of this money has been 
secured for highway improvements and education which are paid to Derbyshire 
County Council and other contributions are secured on behalf of Parish 
Councils.  Taking these contributions out of the calculations leaves £645,024.71 
secured at an average rate of £721.50 per dwelling. Any contribution to third 
parties will be recorded as an economic impact if identified as part of application. 
 

Evidence: National Planning Policy Framework; Policy CF7 of the Adopted Local 
Plan for High Peak; Finance team (internal) 
 
Open space contribution to Council:  
 

Open space requirements are currently based on those recommended by the 
Fields in Trust (Planning and design for outdoor sport and play) of a minimum of 
2.4 hectares (six acres) of outdoor playing space per 1,000 people. 
 
The standard for outdoor playing space provision is based on population, derived 
from the capacity of each dwelling proposed. Below is a table of requirements for 
each new dwelling. 

 
 A B C D 
Nature of 
open space 
or recreation 
facility 

Provision 
required in 
hectares per 
1,000 
population 

Standard per 
new 
dwelling 
(m2) 

Horticulture 
schedule of 
rates per m2 

Contribution 
per dwelling 

Equipped 
children’s 
play 

0.11 2.56 £75 £192 

Page 89

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/new-homes-bonus-calculator-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/new-homes-bonus-calculator-2017-to-2018


  

Parks and 
Gardens 

1.15 26.81 £21.30 £571 

Outdoor 
sports 
facilities 

1.05 24.47 £20 £489.40 

Allotments 0.22 5.13 £15 £76.95 
 

 
Using the above table each development is assessed on its own merit and 
against an identified need of the type of open space requirement in the area. Not 
all developments are subject to this contribution. 

 
Evidence: Policy CF4 of the Adopted Local Plan for High Peak; NPPF; Operational 
services (internal) 
 
S106 for business use: 

S106 contributions for planning applications for business use are dependent 
upon the impact of the specific development on the environment, infrastructure 
and community. Each development is considered on its merits and s106 
contributions are only identified if there is any specific impacts that can be 
mitigated. A percentage of this money if secured for highway improvements, is 
paid to Derbyshire County Council. 
 

Evidence: National Planning Policy Framework 
 
5 Private sector investment for housing development:  
 

Developers can submit evidence of actual costs. As a comparison, a rate of 
£90,476 will be utilised as standard in line with other service teams. This cost is 
based on information provided by three developers in 2014-2016 relating to costs 
on actual cost per dwelling on three developments.  

 
Evidence: Developers and Registered Providers active in High Peak  
 
6. Additional Spend (initial) 

 
Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners Ltd reviewed evidence on surveys which looked at 
initial additional spending undertaken by new householders as part of a 
commission by Homes for Scotland (an organisation representing 200 
companies which deliver 95% new homes). This identified that the average new 
home owner spends between £5,000 and £12,000 within the first year of 
ownership on top of that paid to house builder in the local area to ‘make the 
house feel like a home’. No similar up to date in-depth analysis of English spend 
is available but it is reasonable to assume spend patterns will be similar. As the 
Scotland study analysed spend patterns across varying demographics, it is 
thought reasonable to use the lowest average as a ‘minimum re-spend’ unless 
developer can supply updated reliable evidence. 

 
Evidence: NLP ‘The Economic & Social Benefits of Home Building in Scotland’ 2015 
 
7. Additional Spend (on-going) 

Page 90



  

 
The GVA Quantitative Retail Study (update) 2013 commissioned by the Council 
as part of the adopted Local Plan evidence base, analysed household spend 
patterns within High Peak settlements. This identified that 33.33% of all 
household expenditure is spent at district level or below. The average weekly 
local spend of each household is calculated by the Office for National Statistics as 
part of the Annual Household Expenditure study. The ONS family spending report 
2015 indicates UK households spent an average of £531 a week. Each new 
household is therefore worth £176.97 per week or £9,202.44 per year of re-spend 
within the borough. 
 
Car parking income for the Council: In addition to the spend in the economy, more 
people living, shopping and working in the area means more people using town 
centre car parks and hence, increased income for the Council that could be used 
for other community benefits.  

 
Evidence: GVA Quantitative Retail Study (update) 2013; ONS: Family Spending 
Report 2015 
 
8. New Jobs (housing construction and supply chain) 

 
 Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners was commissioned by Home Builders Federation 

(HBF) in March 2015 to value the economic footprint of new home building. This 
research identified that each new house generates between 1.2 to 1.5 direct jobs 
in construction. However, taking into account the supply chain, of which 92 per 
cent is UK based, they concluded that each new house generates an equivalent 
to 4.3 jobs. Clearly, not all of these construction, or supply chain jobs will be 
locally based, but considering the supply chain within the area, a conservative 
estimate is that at least a quarter of these will be locally based. A rate of 1.07 
jobs supported by each new home will be utilised as the standard amount until 
further updated reliable evidence is available. 

 
Evidence: NLP- The Economic footprint of UK housebuilding March 2015 

 
9. New Jobs (shops and service, supported by housing re-spend)  

 
The local spend generated by new households will also support jobs in shops 
and services. Deloitte (in partnership with Oxford Economics) have calculated 
this this undertook a study on additional spend required to generate a new job, 
and identifies that for every £54,000 of additional spend, a new full time 
equivalent job is created. While this study was specifically looking at additional 
spend required to generate jobs within the tourism sector, it has equal relevance 
to other sectors and is being used as standard unless other reliable evidence is 
available. The rate means that an additional (tier 3) local job would be generated 
through household re-spend for every seven new homes (or 0.14 per dwelling). 

 
Evidence:  Deloitte & Oxford Economics ‘Tourism jobs and growth: The economic 
contribution of the tourism economy in the UK’ November 2013 
 
10.  Affordable housing 
 

Page 91



  

The Adopted High Peak Local Plan includes Policy H4 outlines the Council’s 
requirements on affordable housing delivery. It states that in order to address the 
need for affordable housing, residential developments should seek to achieve the 
following proportions of residential units as affordable housing : 
• 30% affordable housing on sites of 25 units or more 
• 20% affordable housing on sites of 5-24 units (0.16ha or larger) 

 
This will be supported by an Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning 
Document which will give more detail on the affordable housing requirements 
and delivery options. This will also include work on assessing the impact of 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in the High Peak.  Work to procure this will 
begin later this year. 
 

Evidence: The Adopted High Peak Local Plan Policy H4  
 

 
Assumptions for Business/Employment use Development 
 
11. Business rates 
 

A proportion of the business rates income is retained locally by the borough. 
Under the current business rates system, and as a member of the Derbyshire 
business rates pool, c.3% of the overall income (or c.65% of the growth on 
income) is retained. Consultation by DCLG for a revised retention system to be 
introduced in 2020 is underway when the proportion of retained business rates 
may increase. 
 
Business Rates are calculated using a property’s ‘rateable value’, which is its 
open market rental value on 1 April 2015 (for Business Rates from 1 April 2017 
onwards) based on an estimate by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA). The 
rateable value is multiplied by the correct ‘multiplier’ (‘Standard or ‘Small 
Business Non-Domestic Rating Multiplier’), which is set by central government. 
This charge is then adjusted where the property is eligible for business rates 
reliefs, including small business rate relief and charitable rate relief; and where 
transitional adjustments apply. 
 
Each development can be assessed by the VOA individually to have the rateable 
value estimated for the property. However, this may cause additional pressure on 
time for VOA and cause delay. Therefore as a proxy, a similar property’s rateable 
value could be used to estimate business rate income to the Council.  

 
Evidence:  Valuation Office; Finance team (internal) 
 
12. Private sector investment for business uses: 
 

As the cost of investment can vary significantly due to the land value, quality and 
features associated with the development, it is most appropriate for officers to 
utilise bespoke calculations either provided by developer or as advised by the 
consultants appointed by the Council. The benefits of development on business 
growth and job creation should also be considered on each individual application. 
 

Page 92



  

For example, Pennine Aggregates proposed large scale capital investment in 
new premises in 2016 with an anticipation that this will allow the Buxton based 
company to increase turnover from £2.5m in 2015 to £5m in 2018 and increase 
employee numbers from 10 to 20.  
 

13. Value of Employee spend to the Local economy 
 
Propensity to spend studies have identifies that between 4.5 and 9% of 
employees overall household spend is spent with 2-3 miles of their place of 
employment. In High Peak this would equate to £24-48 per employee per week 
(£1394 per annum based on 9mid rate of 6.49%) 
 
NLP identified national average of 40% of weekly household expenditure spent 
locally, for locally based working age residents which would equate to £212.40 
per employee per week (£11,045 per annum). Therefore in terms of employee re-
spend, business growth that attracts relocation of employees/in-migration to fill 
vacancies will have a greater economic impact than business growth which will 
employ only existing residents/in-commuters. It would be considered unrealistic 
that more than 20% of Level 4 (graduate level) new jobs would be filled by 
relocating employees unless the applicant can give evidence to support a 
variation.  
 
Recent studies into the economic impact of local independent businesses and 
the retail sector has calculated that if this re-spend occurs in independents, this 
has a significantly higher multiplier (research shows £5 spend with an 
independent business has a value of up to £25 to the local economy). This paper 
makes no distinction on re-spend destination, but it does mean that the value of 
re-spend should be seen as a minimum figure not an average. 

 
Evidence: Office National Statistics (family spending report 2015); Nathanial 
Litchfield Partners(NLP); Totally Locally; University of Derby Economic Impact 
assessment;  
 
14. Savings generated by Job growth for wider public sector services 
 

Exchequer savings include reduction in direct benefit payments, reduction in 
costs to NHS and crime reduction benefits. Gross value of this to the tax payer is 
£6,855 to £12,084. (higher levels of savings to the tax payer generated if young 
people and people formerly on incapacity benefits move from worklessness to 
employment).  

• Average JSA benefit receipt  £5311 (based on 2009 rates) 
• Health savings   £513   
• Crime reduction benefit   £1080   
• Male 17-24    £5170 
• Make 25+    £2610 
• Female 17-24   £1250 
• Female 25 +   £444 

 
The overall saving to public purse is £6268 - £11,497 with a simultaneous boost 
generated by tax and NI income – which even at minimum wage levels would 

Page 93



  

generate £587 per annum. This equates to a gross value to tax payer of £6855 - 
£12,084 for new employees who were previously in receipt of benefits. 
It would be considered unrealistic that more than 20% of entry level positions 
would be filled by workers who are newly economic active unless the applicant 
can give evidence to support a variation. 

 
Evidence: Home office research 217’ The economic and social costs of crime’ 2000 
& revised costs 2011; Dept. Work & Pensions Social Cost-Benefit Analysis 
framework: Methodologies for estimating and incorporating the wider social and 
economic impacts of work in cost benefit analysis of employment programmes 
(working paper 86) 2010. 
 
15  New jobs (employment) 

 
Nathanial Litchfield Partnership have estimated job numbers based on national 
ratios utilising ODPM Guidance Note on Employment Land Reviews calculations 
2015. 
 
Job Density ratios 
 B1 (Office)1 job per 14m2  
 B1 (all) 1 job per 20m2  
 B2 (manufacturing) 1 job per 35m2 
 B8(Distribution) 1 job per 50m2 
 Evidence provided by Nathanial Litchfield Partnership 2015, based on ODPM 

Guidance Note on Employment Land Reviews calculations.  
    

Business development will also generate a range of additional job opportunities 
including temporary jobs in the construction phase and jobs generated through 
re-spend of new employees. The developer will need to supply estimates of 
these based on the individual development 
 

Evidence: Nathanial Litchfield Partnership 2015; ODPM Guidance Note on 
Employment Land Reviews calculations 2015 
 
16. Tourism investment 
 

Scarborough Tourism Economic Activity Monitor (STEAM) is a nationally 
recognised tourism economic impact modelling process, first used in North 
Yorkshire, which since 2002 has been widely used across the UK and has been 
independently reviewed on at least two occasions. The Council buys this data to 
access reliable and consistent data on the visitor economy at a local level.  
 
STEAM data for 2015 has identified that there were 4.03m day visitors to the 
High Peak who spent on average £35.16 per day. In contrast, the 0.44m staying 
visitors spent £213.23 per visit (or £66.63 per day based on an average 3.2 
days). Therefore, assuming there is no overall increase in visitor numbers, the 
conversion of a day visitor to a staying visitor – through the investment in 
accommodation or attractions which encourage people to stay longer, will have 
an average boost to the local economy of £178.07 per visitor. 
 

Page 94



  

The overall spend pattern per person for staying visitors for duration of visit 
includes: 

• Accommodation: £20.68 pp (9.7%) 
• Direct expenditure in local area (food and drink, shopping, entrance fees 

recreational activities, parking & transport): £139.06 (65.2%)   
• Indirect expenditure: £53.73 

 
It is worth noting that the duration of stay and average spend per duration of 
staying visitors in Buxton, is lower than the High Peak average. However the 
daily spend of staying visitors is actually higher at £76.16 per day.   

 
Evidence: Global Tourism Solutions(UK) Ltd; STEAM Final trend report (Buxton 
and High Peak) 2015 

 
17. Reverse Multiplier  

 
Evidence: 
http://www.economicsonline.co.uk/Managing_the_economy/The_multiplier_effect.html 
http://www.economicsonline.co.uk/Fiscal_space.html 

 
 

Page 95

http://www.economicsonline.co.uk/Managing_the_economy/The_multiplier_effect.html
http://www.economicsonline.co.uk/Fiscal_space.html


This page is intentionally left blank



   

  
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to Corporate Select Committee 
 

20th March 2017 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 To consider an amendment to the scheme of delegation to enable 

designations of Neighbourhood Areas, in those circumstances where the 
Council must exercise its powers of designation to designate the 
neighbourhood area applied for, to be made by the relevant Portfolio Holder 
with responsibilities for planning, in consultation with ward members who 
represent the proposed neighbourhood area. 

 
2. Recommendations 
  
2.1 To recommend that the Executive amend the Scheme of Delegation to 

delegate authority to the Executive Member whose responsibilities include 
planning policy to act in accordance with the protocol for decision making by 
an individual executive member, and in consultation with the ward members 
who represent the proposed neighbourhood area, to designate 
neighbourhood areas in those circumstances where the Neighbourhood 
Planning (General) and Development Management Procedure (Amendment) 
Regulations 2016 apply. 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The Neighbourhood Planning (General) and Development Management 

Procedure (Amendment) Regulations 2016 came into force on October 1st 
2016.  Under the Regulations, in those instances when a Parish Council is 
applying for the whole of the parish to be designated; where a parish is 
enlarging an existing neighbourhood area to encompass the whole of the 
parish; or in all other cases where an application has not been determined 
within the statutory 8 week period - the Local Planning Authority must 
exercise its powers to designate the specified area as a neighbourhood area. 

TITLE: Amending the Scheme of Delegation for 
designation of Neighbourhood Areas in specified 
circumstances 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:  Cllr Tony Ashton – Leader 

CONTACT OFFICER:     Pranali Parikh – Regeneration Manager 

WARDS INVOLVED All 

Page 97

Agenda Item 10



   

 
3.2 The implications of these new Regulations include that the requirement to 

publicise a Neighbourhood Area is removed; and the Council should approve 
an application once that application is considered to be valid and complete. 

 
3.3 Given that Regulations now prescribe circumstances for which a Local 

Planning Authority must use its powers of designation, it is proposed that in 
the case of applications that meet these criteria, the decision to approve the 
designation of a Neighbourhood Area should be delegated to the Executive 
Member whose responsibilities include planning policy (currently the Leader) 
in consultation with ward members who represent the proposed 
neighbourhood area. 

 
 How this Report Links with Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1 Given the broad nature of Neighbourhood Planning, there will be direct 

implications for all of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 
4. Options and Analysis 

 
5.1 Options in relation to amending the scheme of delegation are: 
 

1. Amend the Scheme of Delegation to delegate authority to the relevant 
Executive Member in consultation with the ward members who represent 
the proposed neighbourhood area – to designate neighbourhood areas in 
certain circumstances in the future (those circumstances when under the 
Neighbourhood Planning (General) and Development Management 
Procedure (Amendment) Regulations 2016 a Neighbourhood Area must 
be designated.  (This will enable a Parish Council to continue work on 
preparation of a Neighbourhood Development Plan in a timely fashion and 
avoid taking up committee time where there is limited discretion available 
for Members in relation to the decision to be taken.)  Recommended. 

 
2. Maintain the existing Scheme of Delegation and continue to take all future 

applications for Neighbourhood Area designation to Committee.  (This 
would add an additional step into the process of designation where the 
Local Authority must exercise its powers, resulting in delay to the 
commencement of preparation work on a Neighbourhood Plan.)  Not 
recommended. 

 
6. Implications 
 
6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
The Parish Council will receive support from members of the Regeneration 
Service planning policy team in the preparation of their Neighbourhood Plan 

Page 98



   

to help ensure that the Plan will meet the Basic Conditions and be successful 
at Examination. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity and 
Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
The main financial considerations will result from: 
• Cost of examination (estimated £8,000). 
• Cost of referendum (estimated £10,000). 
 
The Council is eligible for Neighbourhood Planning New Burdens funding – 
paid by DCLG for supporting progression of Neighbourhood Plans. The 
2016/17 claims criteria allow the Council to claim £5,000 for the first five 
neighbourhood areas designated. The limit of five areas applies to the total 
number of areas designated (i.e. it includes areas designated in previous 
years). The Council has designated three areas (Chapel-en-le-Frith, Whaley 
Bridge and Chinley, Buxworth and Brownside).  The current claims criteria 
also allow grant payment of £20,000 to be claimed once a date is set for a 
referendum, following a successful examination. 
 

6.5 Legal 
 
Under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) the Council 
has a statutory duty to assist communities in the preparation of 
Neighbourhood Development Plans.  Applications for designation of a 
Neighbourhood Area are made under Neighbourhood Planning (General) 
Regulations 2012 and The Neighbourhood Planning (General) and 
Development Management Procedure (Amendment) Regulations 2016. 
Neighbourhood Areas are defined under the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 61G. The relevant considerations for the Council include: Before 
exercising it powers, the Council should consider: 
 
1. Is the organisation making the application a relevant body (as prescribed 
by the Act this must be a Parish Council or, in unparished areas, a 
designated Neighbourhood Forum)? 
2. Is the area identified for designation as a neighbourhood area considered 
appropriate (where the applicant is a Parish Council, the area identified could 
include the whole or any part of the Parish)? 
3. Would the area more appropriately be designated a business area i.e. the 
area is wholly or predominately in business use? 
4. Does the area overlap with another designated area? 
5. Comments received during any public consultation, where consultation is 
required. 
 
If a valid application to designate the whole of a Parish is received from a 
Parish Council, there is limited discretion available in relation to determining 

Page 99



   

the application.  The Council is required to exercise its powers to designate 
the specified area as a Neighbourhood Area. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
Neighbourhood Development Plans must contribute to the achievement of 
sustainable development. 
 

6.7 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
Neighbourhood Development Plans will be subject to public consultation. 
 

6.8 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
Risks are identified in the report. 
 
 

Dai Larner 
Executive Director (Place) 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 
Localism Act 2011 

The Neighbourhood Planning 
(General) Regulations 2012 (as 
amended) 
 
The Neighbourhood Planning 
(General) and Development 
Management Procedure 
(Amendment) Regulations 2016 

 
Buxton 

 
Pranali Parikh 
Phone: 07583 055366 

 

 
 
7. Background and Detail  
 
7.1 Neighbourhood Planning is a tool introduced by the Localism Act 2011 that 

communities can use to help shape the future of their area.  
 
7.2 Preparation of a Neighbourhood Development Plan can be used to set out a 

vision for the future of an area, with associated planning policies for the use 
and development of land.  Neighbourhood Development Plans can say where 
new homes, shops or offices should go; which green spaces should be 
protected, and what new development should look like. 

 
7.3 Neighbourhood Development Plans are optional and communities can choose 

whether or not to prepare one. 
 

Page 100



   

7.4 In areas with a Parish or Town Council, the Parish or Town Council is 
responsible for writing the Neighbourhood Development Plan. The area 
covered by the Plan may be the whole parish boundary, or just part of it.  The 
area covered by the Plan is known as the Neighbourhood Area.  

 
7.5 New regulations for neighbourhood planning came into force on 1st October 

2016.  Under these regulations, local planning authorities must exercise their 
powers of designation to designate the neighbourhood area applied for, when:  
• a Parish Council applies for all of the parish area to be designated; or  
• applies to enlarge an existing designation of part of the parish to include all 

of the parish; or  
• when a LPA has not decided on an area designation within the established 

timeframes (8 weeks for a Neighbourhood Area). 
 
7.6 The exception to this is if any of the area has already been designated (other 

than where a parish want to enlarge an existing designated area), or if there is 
an outstanding application for designation). 

 
7.7 It is sought to amend the Scheme of Delegation to delegate authority to the 

relevant Executive Member (currently the Leader) in consultation with the 
ward members who represent the proposed neighbourhood area, to designate 
neighbourhood areas in certain circumstances in the future (those 
circumstances when under the Neighbourhood Planning (General) and 
Development Management Procedure (Amendment) Regulations 2016 – a 
local planning authority must exercise their powers of designation to 
designate the neighbourhood area applied for. 

 
7.8 This will enable the required consideration of straight forward cases where a 

Parish or Town Council is applying for designation of the whole of their parish 
as a Neighbourhood Area to be determined quickly and efficiently without 
need to take a report to committee. 

 
7.9 Should the scheme of delegation be amended, the validity and completeness 

of future applications that meet the criteria set out in the 2016 Regulations can 
be considered by the relevant Executive Member in consultation with the ward 
members who represent the proposed neighbourhood area. 

 
 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
          
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

Corporate Select Committee  
 

20th March 2017 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
1.  Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 To seek approval to allocate grant awards from the Heritage Regeneration 

Grant (HRG) budget.   
 

2. Recommendation 

 That the Executive be recommended to: 

2.1 consider and approve a 50 % grant of up to £3265 (exc VAT) for eligible 
works totalling £6530  (exc VAT) towards the repair of an original shop 
front in the Chinley Conservation Area.  
 

2.2 consider and approve a 75% grant of up to £6,570 (exc VAT) for eligible 
works totalling £8,760 (exc of VAT) towards the restoration of a 
traditional shop front in Hadfield town centre.  

 
3. Executive Summary 

3.1 Heritage Regeneration Grants promote the repair and restoration of 
historic buildings within the High Peak Local Plan area. The scheme 
operates with a budget of £45,000 per annum. Given the limited budget, 
grant awards are restricted to a maximum of £10,000 per property. 
Under this scheme, Councillors are asked to consider 2 grant 
applications that seek to repair or reinstate traditional shopfront details 
within the borough’s town and village centres.   Officers have assessed 
the applications against the funding criteria and conclude that each 

TITLE: Heritage Regeneration Grants 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Councillor Tony Kemp, Executive Councillor 

for Tourism, Regeneration and Licensing 
  

OFFICER:   Joanne Brooks, Regeneration Officer     
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  CHINLEY & HADFIELD 

Page 103

Agenda Item 11



  

application will make a positive impact on the appearance of the 
building and area.  

 
 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 This report concerns publicly funding the restoration and repair of 
historic properties that are either listed, identified heritage assets or 
located within one of the Council's conservation areas. This, in turn, is 
related to the Council’s corporate aim 3: 

 
• To support Economic Development & Regeneration – measured 

by sustainable town and rural communities.  
 
5.       Options and Analysis 

 
 

5.1 Option 1 - Approve the recommendations outlined in this report to 
 enable officers to offer grant aid totalling £9,635 towards the repair and 

restoration of 2 historic buildings within the borough. The repair and 
restoration works to each shop frontage will enhance the heritage value 
of the building and locality and act as an exemplar to positive repair and 
restoration. Recommended 

 
5.2 Option 2 – Officers do not allocate grant aid totalling £9,635 towards 2 

historic buildings within the borough and the opportunity to enhance 
and preserve historic buildings in commercial use within town and 
village centres is missed.  Not recommended.  

 
    
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
No implications  
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
No implications 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
There are allocations within the capital programme for the Heritage 
Regeneration Grant scheme. There is £35,000 remaining to make 
the grant recommended in this report. 
 

Page 104



  

Budget for 2016/17 - £45,000 
Remaining unallocated budget- £25,165 
 

6.5 Legal 
 
Local authorities are empowered to give grants towards 
improvements in conservation areas under Section 57 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.   
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
Repairing, restoring and in some cases bringing back into use the 
historic building stock for future generations is a sustainable 
activity. 
  

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
The relevant ward Members have been consulted on the grant 
applications and have offered their support to the grant 
applications.  
 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
No implications. 
 

 
Dai Larner 

Executive Director 
 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

Heritage Regeneration Grants  
 

Files held electronically  Joanne Brooks ext 3654 

 
 
7.         Background and Detail 

 
7.1  There have been no previous Heritage Regeneration grants approved 

previously, for these buildings.   
 
7.2 Chinley Post Office is located within a small row of early 20th century 

terraced brick buildings (see appendix 1). The terrace is in commercial 
use and occupies a focal point within the Chinley Conservation Area. 
The property and terrace, is fortunate in retaining many traditional and 
original features. Number 9 Green Lane has recently restored a 
matching shopfront with grant aid under the HRG.  

 
New owners have taken over the post office, and whilst retaining these 
services, have diversified into selling local produce. The shop is well 
used and provides an important local community service.  

Page 105



  

 
The frontage, whilst original, is in poor condition and requires joinery 
and stained glass window repairs. In addition there are some  
architectural joinery details that are missing and require reinstatement.  
 
The applicant has only been able to obtain one estimate that breaks 
down as follows: 

 
• Repair and restoration of joinery details   £4,875  
• Leaded light repairs     £228 
• Decoration and new painted fascia sign   £1427 

 
Total        £6530 (exc VAT) 
 

Applying the grant percentages applicable a 50% grant would total 
£3,265.  
 
The work is subject to the standard grant conditions and the following 
requirements: 
 

• A second estimate is obtained for the works and the grant offer 
reduced accordingly should the second estimate be lower.  

• Paint colour and signage design to be approved by the 
conservation officer before being implemented. 

  
 

7.3 54 Station Road, Hadfield (see Appendix 2) is located towards the 
northern end of Station Road, Hadfield and lies outside of the 
conservation area boundary. Once the former co-operative building, the 
original frontage has been removed and the building split into two 
smaller units.  

 
 After undertaking some historical research, the applicant is keen to 

restore a traditional shopfront that follows in part the original co-
operative frontage. The applicants cannot restore the frontage in its 
entirety without incorporating the adjacent unit of which they have no 
control.    

 
 Two estimates have been received for the works the lowest of which 

totals £8,760. Applying the grant percentages applicable a 75% grant 
would total £6,570. 

 
 The work is subject to the standard grant conditions and following 

requirements: 
 

• Planning permission and building control consents are obtained 
prior to the commencement of works. 

• The exact details  and joinery sections for the new shopfront are 
agreed with the conservation officer prior to the commencement 
of works on site. 

Page 106



  

• Details of all signage and decoration are agreed with the 
conservation area prior to commencement of works on site. 

 
7.4 The grant applications meet the criteria set out below for assessing 

applications under this grant scheme and as approved by the Executive 
Portfolio Holder for Regeneration.  

 
 The Council will promote and prioritise applications for grant assistance 

that can meet the following criteria:  
 
 • The building is listed, falls within a conservation area or is a 

 heritage asset as defined in National Planning Policy Framework 
 (This is likely to be a site on the DCC Historic Environment 
 Record or which has been identified by the local authority as 
 having heritage significance).  

 
 • The application would promote heritage-led regeneration by 

 focusing upon the restoration or repair of traditional commercial 
 frontages within town/village centres. Applications that focus 
 solely upon the repair or restoration of upper floors only will be 
 treated as a lower priority to those that include a scheme for the 
 repair or restoration of the full frontage.  There are a number of 
 vacant properties within the Borough, some of which occupy 
 prominent and key focal points within the high street. The offer of 
 a potential grant can act as a critical incentive in opening up 
 discussions with possible tenants and owners and therefore 
 funding will be positively targeted towards these properties in the 
 first instance.  

 
 • The proposed scope of works would have a significant positive 

 impact on the street scene and/or the character or appearance 
 of the heritage asset.  

 
 • The proposed scope of works would promote either the repair or 

 restoration of traditional architectural detailing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 107



Appendix 1 – Post Office – Chinley 

 

 

Appendix 2 – 54 Station Road, Hadfield 

 

 

Page 108



 
 
 

10.1 
 

 CORPORATE 
Chairman: Councillor Barrow 

Vice Chairman: Councillor Douglas 
Lead Officer: A Stokes 

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration 

20-Mar-17 Performance Annual Report V Higgins  
HRA Capital Procurement Awards (Part 2) Paul Hare  
Data Protection Policy D Smith  
Measuring the Economic Impact of Development P Parikh  
Facilities Management Performance Arrangement (Part 2) A Stokes  
Equalities Update M Forrester  
Consultation Strategy M Forrester  
Elections Printing Procurement Outline M Hancock  
Amending the Scheme of Delegation for designation of 
Neighbourhood Areas  

P Parikh  

Select Committee Work Programme   
   

Jun-17 Appointment of Chairman & Vice-Chairman   
Health and Safety Annual Report  D Owen  
Select Committee Work Programme   
   

July-17 Fourth Quarter Performance and Financial Review 
(Outturn) 2016/17  

A Stokes  

Select Committee Work Programme   
Sep-17 1st Quarter Performance and Financial Review 2017/18 A Stokes  

Select Committee Work Programme   
   

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 12



 
 
 

10.2 
 

 CORPORATE 
Oct-17 Select Committee Work Programme   

   
   

Nov-17 Medium Term Financial Plan Update A Stokes  
2nd Quarter Performance and Financial Review 2016/17 A Stokes  
   

Feb-18 Third Quarter Performance and Financial Review 2017/18 A Stokes  
Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19   A Stokes  
Select Committee Work Programme   
   

To add in Temporary Agency Services A Stokes  
  Safeguarding Annual Report M Trillo  
Character Appraisals – Chapel en le Frith Town End and 
Howard Park, Glossop Conservation Areas  

J Brookes  

High Peak Design Guide  Richard Tuffrey / 
Jo Brookes 

 

Riverbank works to River Wye & Serpentine Park, Buxton 
& Warm Brook, Chapel en le Frith – design phase 

P Hare  

Information Governance Policy D Smith  
   

   
 
 
 
 

P
age 110



 
 
 

10.3 
 

COMMUNITY 
Chairman: Councillor Young 

Vice Chairman: Councillor Siddall 
Lead Officer: M Trillo 

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration 

29-Mar-2017 
Invite to all 
Cllrs 

HPBC Sports and Physical Activity Strategy  K Parker  
Councillor Support Scheme M Forrester  
Community Safety Update D Smith  
Waste Collection and Street Cleansing Options – Update 
(TBC) 

A Stokes P2 

Update on Public Spaces Protection Order at Pavilion 
Gardens, Buxton 

D Smith  

Work Programme   
   

Jun-2017 Appointment of Chairman and Vice Chairman   
Work Programme   
   

July-2017 Places for People – Summer Activities Programme A Hall  
Work Programme   
   
   

Oct-2017 Work Programme   
   
   

Nov-2017 Work Programme   
   

P
age 111



 
 
 

10.4 
 

COMMUNITY 
To add 
in/current 
and planned 
Sub-
Committees: 

Update on Glossop Household Recycling Centre  C Brailsford DCC 
Review of Places for People Contract K Parker 2016/17 
Community Rights M Forrester  
Update from EMAS  EMAS   
Update from Waste Working Group K Parker As required 
Blythe House   
North Derbyshire CCG – Update on results of “Better 
Care Closer to Home” consultation 

  

Social Services Adult Care   
Future of NHS in Derbyshire   
Macclesfield and District General Hospital   
Review of Cemetery Policy T Redfern  
   
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 112



 
 
 

10.5 
 

 
 

HOUSING  
Chairman: Councillor A McKeown 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Robins 
Lead Officer: Dai Larner/M Walker 

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration 

23-Mar-17 Fairfield Road Project Update Mike Towers  
Housing Repairs Procurement Nicola Kemp  
White Paper Update Helen Core  
Homelessness Prevention Expenditure Update Michelle Costello  
Work Programme   
   

Jun-17 Appointment of Chairman & Vice-Chairman   
Triennial review of Housing Tenancy Agreement Helen Core  
Work Programme   
   
   

Jul-17 Work Programme   
   

Octl-17 Work Programme   
   

To add in Green Deals   
Community Work   
Procurement reports Paul Hare As required 
Update on review of Disabled Facilities Grant DCC  

P
age 113



 
 
 

       13 March 2017 

HOUSING  
Chartered Institute of Housing Review of Sheltered 
Accommodation 

Mark Trillo  

Non-financial update from Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan 

Helen Core  

Update on Housing and Planning Act Helen Core  
High Peak CAB   
   

 
 
 
 P

age 114



Document is Restricted

Page 115

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 117

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 123

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 129

Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Development of the Performance Framework and Targets for 2017/18
	6 Revised Data Protection Policy
	Data Protection Policy Appendix

	7 Corporate Equality Objectives
	Corporate Equality Objectives Appendix A
	Corporate Equality Objectives Appendix B

	8 Consultation and Engagement Policy
	Consultation and Engagement Policy Appendix A

	9 Measuring the Economic Impact of Development
	10 Amending the scheme of delegation for designation of Neighbourhood Areas in specified circumstances
	11 Heritage Regeneration Grants
	grant report corporate select 20 March 2017 ver 2
	appendices 20th March 2017

	12 Select Committee Work Programme
	15 Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 16 January 2017
	16 Elections and Electoral Registration Contract
	17 Facilities Management Arrangement
	18 HRA Capital Programme 2017/18 Contract Awards

